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Trust Sa Sa to care for your inner health and outer beauty
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All products featured in this annual report are retailed under Sa Sa's private
iR B K AE labels or by Sa Sa as sole agent
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"7 CORPORATE PROFILE

Sa Sa International Holdings Limited ("Sa Sa" or "the Group") is a leading

provider of beauty and health products and services in Asia. Listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange in 1997 (SEHK:178), Sa Sa employs over 1,800 staff across
the region. Its vision is to become the dominant provider of "beauty + health"

products and services in Asia.

Established in 1978, Sa Sa has grown from a 40 sq. ft. retail space to become
today's regional 'beauty + health' enterprise. Its legendary brand strength in
Asia is built on innovative cosmetics retailing at competitive prices in one-stop

stores filled with top international brands.

Sa Sa has differentiated itself through the creation of an integrated 'beauty +

health' platform, in three distinct business areas:

Retail - The Group sells over 400 brands, covering over 15,000 cosmetics,
fragrances, skin care and hair care products including private labels and exclusive
products. Its retail network currently comprises an extensive regional network
of over 50 Sa Sa Cosmetics stores, as well as La Colline specialty stores and
a new Selective store which offers products exclusive to Sa
Sa. In mainland China, our subsidiary, Sa Sa Ebeca, now
features a nationwide network of 162 retail counters. Our
e-commerce platform, sasa.com, also offers 24-hour online
shopping with its International, Hong Kong and Korean sites

together with comprehensive product and corporate information.
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Beauty Services - The Group operates a regional network of nine Phillip Wain

health and beauty ladies' clubs in Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand and Hong Kong
for a select membership of premium customers. Sa Sa Beauty+ beauty and
slimming centre in Hong Kong now offers quality and value-for-money beauty
services for Sa Sa's loyal customers, including over 100,000 VIP members. In
mainland China, utilising the eight beauty salons under the Ebeca brand, the
Group offers beauty treatment services to loyal Ebeca customers throughout

the PRC.

Exclusive Distributorship and Private Labels -

In addition to selling its private-label products,
the Group also operates as the sole agent
for many international cosmetic brands in
Asia. Sa Sa currently handles over 50
exclusive major brands, including brand
management and distribution. This business
accounts for approximately 26.4% of the

Group's total retail turnover.
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The acquisition of a majority stake in With its chain of La Colline Specialty Now providing 24-hour access to Sa Sa
Phillip Wain provides the Sa Sa Group Stores, the Group can now offer products, sasa.com offers the Group
with a strong platform to develop a customers premium, tailored beauty exciting new e-commerce opportunities.

comprehensive ‘beauty + health” business. services, while demonstrating its diverse

Sasa.comEBEEAIRER N LiRE
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Sa Sa's first exclusive health supplement
marks our strategic diversification into the
lucrative health food market.
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Our commitment to provide an enjoyable
shopping experience for our customers is

the driving force behind Sa Sa's new-
look stores.
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Sa Sa Ebeca, as the Group's first step
into the mainland China market, provides

an extensive retail network across China
for the Group's house brands.
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The Launch of our Korean language
Site strengthens our penetration of the
Korean market, which has one of the
highest e-shopping rates in Asia.
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Sa Sa Beauty+ offers a one-stop
cosmetics, beauty and slimming service to
Sa Sa's loyal customers and broadens the
Group's market base in beauty services.
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"7 FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS #17%

TURNOVER
HXRA
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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TURNOVER BY BUSINESS
ERBIRERB LB

Beauty Services X&MRH

2002

,— Cosmetics Retail and wholesale
{LiamEE Rt E
[ Including 26.4% of private-label
and exclusively distributed products
SEREEBRNEERMNL 26.4% ]

Change #%)

Turnover ( HK$ million )

BeE (EEAT) 1,537.4 1,439.4 +7%
%%Siﬁpg;g%“ million ) 662.0 634.6 +4%
1%}[\Hz;rﬁe&hz’(;I?}eﬁr‘%)equity per share ( HK$/ share ) 0.60 0.71 -15%
iyl oo 050 044 2
g%’;‘;;g(ﬁg;msyare (HKS cents) 5 cents 5 cents 0%
Evé;?%gg%m million ) 216.6 3167 -32%
Inventory turnover ( days ) 89 142 53days

FEAH (X)
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TURNOVER BY REGION

2 E IR & L

2002

I N Total &£ HKS 1,537.4 million BT

| 84% +6.8%+-9.2%—

[ Greater China ( Hong Kong, Macau and mainland China ) A (&% BP9 R P EARE )
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M South Asia ( Singapore, Malaysia & Thailand ) il (Fringt - B pEE R ZRE)

SA SA INTERNATIONAL GROUP'S BUSINESS NETWORK IN ASIA
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No. of Sa Sa Retail Outlets
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m No. of Sa Sa Ebeca Retail Counters
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No. of Phillip Wain Health and Beauty Clubs
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o e No. of Ebeca Beauty Salons
® mainland China KEEXAFLEE
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7" CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ExgmE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon AL

Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor BEEL L

Mr. KING, Roger SRBRE

- service agreement completed on 10th May 2002 -ERBHEER T _FRATHEER
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHTES

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee e e

Mr. CHENG, Ming Fun, Paul, JP ERFFISE AP

Mr. COULL, Gary William John BRFAEE

- retired at the Annual General Meeting held on 30th August 2001 SRIZEZ-FN\AZTHETZRRBFEREG LRE
Mrs. LEE, Look Ngan Kwan, Christina FIBERER 2+

Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas ZE B+

COMPANY SECRETARY DNEHWE

Mr. TSE, Ping Shing, FHKSA 117 2% 55 4 FHKSA

HEAD OFFICE BMER

14th Floor, Block B, MP Industrial Centre B

18 Ka Yip Street s

Chai Wan FEM18%

Hong Kong FAR T ¥ BREE141E
REGISTERED OFFICE FMREE

Ugland House Ugland House

South Church Street South Church Street

George Town George Town

P.O. Box 309, Grand Cayman P.0. Box 309, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

British West Indies British West Indies
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AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd.
Butterfield House

68, Fort Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Abacus Share Registrars Limited
5th Floor, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Citibank N.A.
Standard Chartered Bank

WEBSITE

http://www.sasa.com
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Suisse Programme is one of Sa Sa's private labels

Suisse Programme %3558 8 M2 —
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VICE CHAIRMAN  ELEANOR KWOK GUY LOOK CHAIRMAN & CEO  SIMON KWOK
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

A weak global economy prevailed during the 2002 fiscal year, and this presented
many challenges for businesses in every sector. Sa Sa was no exception, but
thanks to our strong financial background and our prudent strategies of
consolidation and building for the future, we managed to emerge from the
year with some significant achievements. Based on the stability and strengths
of our core business, the Board proposes to maintain a dividend at the same
level as last year of HK$5 cents per share. We look forward with growing

confidence and efficiency to increased profitability and greater returns for our

stakeholders.

The Group's core retailing business considerably
outperformed the general economic sentiment,
reflecting Sa Sa's sound fundamentals. Apart from
the one-off costs and provisions, the Group's retail
business remained stable and robust. Our retail
operations in Hong Kong again recorded profit and

growth.

i B R

Strategic measures were also taken to consolidate
and rationalize the Group's operations, reflecting

Sa Sa's ongoing efforts to constantly improve its

business. Non-performing shops were closed in Taiwan and the inventory
management of Sa Sa's entire retail network was significantly enhanced. Excess
fat has been trimmed from the Group's business, paving the way for increased

profitability and growth in the near future.

During the year, we undertook a critical review of Phillip Wain's operations,
which led to some important adjustments and restructuring initiatives that will
significantly benefit the business in the long term. We believe that Phillip Wain
is now better positioned for future growth. In the 2003 fiscal year, we will
continue to review and recalibrate our operations wherever necessary

to enhance the performance of all newly acquired businesses.
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YT CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
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The Group has a clear vision for the future, namely to become Asia's dominant
provider of beauty and health products and services. This commitment
remain sunwavering. To achieve this, the Group will continue to leverage its
unique competitive strengths - including strong brand equity, extensive industry
experience, excellent management skills, a sound financial position and a huge

and loyal region-wide customer base - to diversify our base of products and

services around the core business concept of ‘beauty + health'.

Cosmetic retailing, one of the Group's key business strengths, will remain an
essential and vibrant aspect of our future strategies. In addition to strengthening
our marketing promotions and continuing to enhance the layout and interiors
of our stores, we aim to increase our customer base by targeting the needs of
the increased flow of tourists from mainland China following on Hong Kong's
relaxation of its PRC tourist quota. To more effectively capture this fast-growing
market segment, Sa Sa will continue to adjust its merchandise offerings as

appropriate.

Our range of product offerings will be broadened by securing more
exclusive distribution rights from international brands, in order to meet
the demands of our huge and diversified customer base. By increasing the
number of exclusive distribution rights, we can exert further control on the
promotion and pricing of products, thereby increasing our profit margin and
narrowing competition in the market
place. Meanwhile, we will also
extend the channels through
which our products are available
and increase the scope for revenue
generation. For example, in addition
to Sa Sa retail stores, our products
can also be found in our Phillip Wain

and Sa Sa Beauty+ outlets.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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In this context, we are delighted to celebrate the recent opening of our first
Sa Sa Beauty+ beauty and slimming centre in Hong Kong. This initiative aims
to provide one-stop cosmetics, beauty and slimming services to Sa Sa's loyal
customers and, indeed, new ones too. The launch of Sa Sa Beauty+ will
complement the beauty and health services already offered by Phillip Wain, and

enable Sa Sa to target the needs of a broader market base.

As we seek to be the dominant health and beauty services provider in the
region, the Group will also continue to strive for enhanced sales and
geographical expansion across the region. Sa Sa Ebeca is the Group's first
step into the China market and provides us with valuable market insight, as
well as helping us to build a significant platform for exploiting this tremendous
market opportunity. Using Sa Sa Ebeca's retail network, we plan to launch
several exclusive fragrances nationwide in the upcoming months. We are also
confident that a number of other exclusive skin care products can be successfully
launched in the year ahead. Even more significantly, Sa Sa aims to set up

standalone Sa Sa cosmetic stores in the PRC in the coming year.

By implementing strategic measures to rationalize our operations, we have built
a firm foundation for future growth. As the retail sector in Asia starts its path
to recovery, we will be poised to benefit from our robust network and extensive

coverage in the region.

I would now like to take this opportunity to thank each of our employees for
their dedication and commitment to realising Sa Sa's goal of becoming the
dominant beauty and health services provider in Asia. To our shareholders, |
would like to extend my gratitude for their support and confidence in the Group
and its vision of the future. Each of us in the Sa Sa Group remains committed

to repaying that confidence with increased shareholder value long into the future.

N ]

Simon Kwok Z84>8f
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer T [E3#1THREH
Hong Kong, 19th July 2002 &%+ ZTZ =%t A+ 1A
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Exclusive brand fragrances for which Sa Sa is sole agent
BHREREKNBRAE




“Beauty needs no definition.
Beauty speaks for itself. "
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"7 OPERATIONS REVIEW

For the year ended 31st March 2002, the Group's consolidated turnover
amounted to HK$1,537.4 million, representing an increase of 6.8% from
HK$1,439.4 million in the previous year. This growth was achieved through the
continued development of the Group's retail business in Hong Kong, as well

as the acquisition of new businesses.

The Group's pre-tax profit for the year, excluding non-recurring special items,
was HK$39.2 million. This represents a reduction against last year, mainly due
to the substantial decrease in interest income following substantial cuts in bank
deposit interest rates, and a drop in the Group's gross profit margin as a result
of strategic clearance sales to improve the inventory management and future

profitability of our retail operations.

The Group has placed particular emphasis on inventory management. As
of 31st March 2002, the Group had successfully reduced the inventory turnover
days to 89 days, from 142 days in the previous year, and cut stock levels by
31.6 % from HK$316.7 million to HK$216.6 million. This improvement lowers

stockholding costs, reduces demand for working capital, and enhances the

efficiency of inventory management, supply chain management and overall

operations. As at 31st March 2002, net cash and bank balances increased to

HK$652.6 million. BEZZT-F-A=1T—HLFE SENGEEESR
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Highlights of the Group's achievements for the year ended 31st March 2002,

are:

Group turnover increased by 6.8% to HK$1,537.4 million

The retail business in Hong Kong achieved a year-on-year increase of 7.1%
in the second half of the year, putting this market's turnover growth at
4.2% in the fiscal year.

Gross profit increased by 4.3% to HK$662.0 million.

The Group's net cash and bank balances increased to HK$652.6 million
as at 31st March 2002, up from HK$593.1 million the previous year.
Total inventory was reduced by 31.6% from HK$316.7 million to HK$216.6
million and inventory turnover was reduced from 142 days to 89 days.
The Group's subsidiary in the PRC market, Sa Sa Ebeca, was acquired in
July 2001, bringing the Group a total of 162 sales counters and eight
beauty salons as of March 2002.

The Korean-language site of sasa.com was launched in July 2001

successfully, leading to a substantial increase in its annualized sales.

For the year ended 31st March 2002, the Group's results were affected by a

number of non-recurring special items, totalling HK$103.4 million. These

included, firstly, provisions and restructuring costs relating to our newly acquired

businesses. Secondly, the Group's leasehold land and buildings experienced a

revaluation deficit. Thirdly, the Group took the conservative stance of making

provision for impairment of the fixed assets of sasa.com. Lastly, the Group

incurred shop closure costs in Taiwan, which came as a strategic response to

that market's adverse retailing environment.

We are pleased to report that the core business of the Group - namely,

cosmetics retailing - remains strong and profitable, despite the fiscal

year's one-off costs and provisions.
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77" OPERATIONS REVIEW

PRIVATE LABELS AND EXCLUSIVELY DISTRIBUTED PRODUCTS

The Group's sales of private-label products and exclusively distributed products
contributed 26.4% of the Group's total retail sales. The sales of these products
in Hong Kong and Macau achieved a growth of 8.3% during the year under
review. Our La Colline specialty stores successfully grew alongside our existing
retail network, contributing to an increase of over 20% in the overall sales of
La Colline products. Our success in boosting both the image and sales of La
Colline clearly demonstrates the Group's brand-management capabilities

and now empowers the Group to develop further in this direction.

During the year, the Group added a number of new brands, including Christian
Breton, Pikenz the First, and the fragrances of Benetton and Sergio Tacchini,
to its portfolio of exclusively distributed products. The Group believes that
continuous development of private labels and expansion of its exclusive-brand
portfolio provide a strong base for future development and higher gross profit

margins.

The Group extended the distribution channel for its exclusive products by
offering them through the Phillip Wain network, further enhancing the visibility

and profile of these products.

Following the successful launch of the Yuerong Beauty Preserver in March 2001,
the Group has now expanded its health food offerings. We will continue to
expand in this market and will consider selling health food products and supplements

via the Phillip Wain network and the Group's upcoming beauty salons.
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RETAIL BUSINESS

In the fiscal year 2002, the Group's retail turnover reached HK$1,344.2 million,
a similar level to the previous year's HK$1,348.3 million. The 4.2% growth of
Hong Kong and Macau, the Group's largest market, was to a certain extent
offset by a substantial drop in the Taiwan market due to further shop closures.
Although the retail environment around the region remains challenging, operating
profit for the retail business, before non-recurring items, reached HK$63.6

million.

Our focused efforts on clearance sales and improved inventory management
reduced total stock levels of retail business by HK$108.4 million. These measures
lowered the gross profit margin of the Group's retail sales by more than 2%
during the year. However, the reduction in inventory levels will strengthen
our stock management and improve our operational efficiency, which

will enhance our future financial performance.

During the year, the Group pursued a stringent cost-reduction programme to
enhance the cost-efficiency of its operations. Measures included reductions in
both labour force and compensation packages, which resulted in a decrease
of 148 staff. These measures will contribute to an annualized cost saving of
about HK$10 million. Together with other cost-reduction efforts, the Group

was able to decrease overall expenses for its retail business by 4.8%.

We have built a great brand that everyone knows, and we have an
unmatched range of products for our huge, loyal and region-wide
customer base. Our relationships with our vendors are excellent, our
sales professionals give quality service, and we have a long-established
network of more than 50 retail outlets in prime Asian locations, as well
as a retail presense across 40 cities in the burgeoning mainland China
market.

We have extensive industry experience and a clear business focus on
“beauty + health”, supported by well thought-out corporate strategies,
including an attractive online presence. A robust balance sheet and a
strong management team are adding fresh new dynamics to this
remarkable company.
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Hong Kong and Macau

Turnover for the year in Hong Kong and Macau increased by 4.2% to HK$1,157.3
million. Notably, the Group achieved turnover for the second half of the
fiscal year of 16.5% above that of the first half of the year, and 7.1%
up on the corresponding period of the previous year. The Group boosted
sales through increased sales drives, opened new stores in prime locations and
conducted successful clearance sales. The Group also benefited from increased
PRC tourist arrivals since January 2002, following the relaxation of visa quotas
for mainland tourists. Set against the backdrop of a sluggish retailing environment,

such growth demonstrates the strength of Sa Sa's position in the market.

Three new Sa Sa stores were opened during the year, bringing the total number

of outlets in Hong Kong and Macau to 35.

Sa Sa applies its global sourcing and purchasing capabilities to getting
the best value products, buying in bulk to increase its bargaining power.
A further factor is our excellent long-term relationships with vendors.
While we pride ourselves on our ability to offer generous discounts,
we also take exceptional care to ensure that everything we sell is
genuine and in tip-top condition.
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Taiwan

Poor consumer sentiment, largely attributable to a weak economy, has made
Taiwan a challenging market for retailers. In the year ending 31st March 2002,
the Group closed five underperforming stores, out of a total of eight, resulting
in closure costs of HK$10.7million. The Group remains confident of this market's

long-term growth potential, and will continue to monitor the market situation.

Singapore and Malaysia

Turnover in Singapore and Malaysia decreased as a result of the generally
dampened economy but the consolidated results of these markets remain
positive. At the end of March 2002, the total number of stores in Singapore
and Malaysia was maintained at nine and seven respectively. The Group remains
committed to expanding its share of these two markets when their economies

start to pick up.

E-TAILING - SASA.COM

Following the launch of our Korean-language site in July 2001, annualized sales
of sasa.com substantially increased. Turnover for the year amounted to
approximately HK$10 million. During the year, the logistics and product mix
were further enhanced to achieve a higher gross profit margin. With continuing
effort, we intend to further increase the gross profit margin and, in combination
with stringent cost controls, the Group aims to lower sasa.com's break-even

point.

With Hong Kong, Korean and international versions of our Web site, overseas
orders currently constitute over 90% of our total online sales. This multilingual,
24-hour sales platform is doing much to increase Sa Sa's public profile
and international market penetration, allowing us to test out markets
and establish brand names even in markets where we do not yet have
a presence. It also strengthens our communication with customers, investors,
shareholders, as well as existing and prospective business partners, through
the provision of comprehensive information on products and promotions, as

well as corporate developments.
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SA SA EBECA

As the Group's first step into the vast PRC market, the Group acquired Shenzhen
Sa Sa Ebeca Enterprise Limited on 15t July 2001 at a consideration of approximately
HK$28.4 million for its 55% stake. The remaining 45% stake is held by Shenzhen
Ebeca Enterprise Company Limited. In the nine months to March 2002, this

new subsidiary contributed HK$31.3 million to the Group's turnover.

During the year under review, Sa Sa Ebeca provided invaluable information
and expertise that will help spearhead the Group's expansion into the
PRC. It also assisted the Group in obtaining product approval for its exclusive

products.

For the period from July 2001 to March 2002, Sa Sa Ebeca opened five new
beauty salons, in Chengdu, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Dalian, bringing the total
number of its beauty salons to eight. At the close of the fiscal year, Sa Sa Ebeca
was operating 162 retail counters in over 40 cities across the PRC. Forty-nine
of these counters were directly managed and 113 franchised. We will continue
to review its business operations and retail network, as well as to strengthen
its management and business base, in order to enhance its performance and

to facilitate Sa Sa's future development in mainland China.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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BEAUTY SERVICES
Phillip Wain

Phillip Wain's turnover for the
year ended 31st March 2002
was HK$151.9 million. This
was lower than expected,
despite the opening of two
new clubs during the fiscal

year - one in Malaysia in

August 2001, and one in Singapore in September 2001- taking the total number
of clubs to nine. The unexpected events of 11th September 2001 led to a marked
downturn in the economies of these two markets, resulting in a reduced demand
for premium-brand health and beauty services. In addition, expenses related to

the opening of the two new clubs increased our financial burden.

The Group has taken steps to improve the situation at Phillip Wain, including
a change of top management, reorganisation and de-layering of middle
management, improved management and staff accountability and strengthened
internal communication. The Group is in the process of upgrading and enforcing
new policies, procedures and systems, as well as considering other strategies
and measures to improve Phillip Wain's performance and service to its customers.
By understanding the business more fully, we aim to gain more control over

future operations.

The Group is pleased with progress relating to the litigation between Sa Sa
International and Mr Edwin J. Phillips. The Group's management believes that
the litigation will have no material impact on the Phillip Wain operation or the

- ; -‘_",-w Group's future performance.
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éb QUALITY TOURISM SERVICES
= B R

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st March 2002, the Group had a total of 1,845 employees. The staff
costs for the year was HK$282.9 million. To ensure that the Group is able to
attract and retain talented staff, remuneration packages are reviewed on a
regular basis and share options, as part of basic remuneration packages, have
also been offered to key employees. Staff development initiatives were
implemented through in-house training programmes and the provision of

financial subsidies for external training courses.

OUTLOOK

In the first few months of fiscal year 2003, the Group's retail sales in Hong
Kong and Macau, which represent three-quarters of the Group's total turnover,
achieved a satisfactory growth despite a poor economic environment.
Looking forward, the Group is cautiously optimistic that this momentum will
be sustained and will further benefit from the influx of PRC tourists arising
from the relaxation of the PRC visitor quotas in Hong Kong in 2002. We will
continue to adjust our merchandise selection to more effectively serve these

tourists' needs.

Although immediate economic prospects around the region remain uncertain,
the Group is confident of continued growth in the long term and is thus
committed to regional expansion. We will actively pursue opportunities as they

arise to develop new and existing markets. Sa Sa's relatively small overseas base

provides significant growth opportunities.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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Exclusive Distributorship and Private labels

The Group is committed to becoming the exclusive distributor for an increasing
portfolio of top international cosmetic brands, and to further expanding our
business in exclusive distributorship and private labels. We aim to increase the
share of this business to 30% of the Group's total retail turnover. This will
strengthen our competitive position, increase our market share and enhance
our profit margin. We will continue to grow the sales of our exclusive products
by leveraging the full strength of our retail network distribution channels,
including Phillip Wain and Sa Sa's new beauty centres as additional channels

for retail sales.

Beauty Services

We see growth potential in beauty services and are committed to developing
this area by extending our existing service range to different market segments.
In addition to the premium ladies' beauty and health clubs of Phillip Wain, the
Group opened its first "Sa Sa Beauty+" beauty and slimming centre end of June
2002, covering over 5,000 sq. ft. in the bustling Causeway Bay district of Hong
Kong. Designed to extend the range of our services to Sa Sa's solid base of loyal
customers and to become their one-stop-shop for cosmetics, beauty and slimming
services, Sa Sa Beauty+ offers advanced beauty treatment services with an emphasis
on quality and value for money. Sa Sa's loyal customers, including over 100,000
VIP members, have an increasing need for beauty treatment services. To cater

for such needs, Sa Sa plans to open more Sa Sa Beauty+ centres in key strategic

locations where Sa Sa stores are established.
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7 OPERATIONS

over 40 cities in China
BEPEBBIERT

over 162 sales counters located in major department
stores and shopping arcades
B162EHE T - ARNEREEEERAIRAS

Directly-managed sales counters in:

HEERERMNHERE

- Beijing 4t - Guangzhou &M
- Shanghai /& - Chengdu m#B

- Shenzhen &4 - Dalian k&

(As at 315t March 2002)
(RE-TT-F=A=+—81)

Other cities:

Nanjing, Tianjin, Qingdao, Kunming, Xian, Nanning, Haerbin, Zhengzhou,
Handan, Jilin, Changchun, Wulumugi, Hangzhou, Fuzhou, Jinan, Wuhan,
Wuxi, Anshan, Shijiazhuang, Ningbo, Wenzhou, Shenyang, Chongging,
Luoyang, Changsha, Datong, Nanchang, Guiyang, Guilin, Haikou, Huizhou,
Nantong, Zhanjiang, Zunyi, Dongguan, Zhongshan, Danshui, Zhuhai,
Hefei, Suzhou

HAE AT

MR- R2 BB BRY BERX BE BEE SN HH - FMH
£E RBEAE MM @M ER - RE - EH BN ARE - BR
BN OB EE R RY KR BE BB B 80BN BE -
T EE RE P POk TRE - AR EM

The Group's application for product approval in the mainland market is making

good progress via Sa Sa Ebeca. Three exclusive-brand fragrances, including SEFEBS S KA EEFEAMIHE L@ A D BRFENE

Blumarine and Montana, have already been approved and will be launched on RIEE - ERZABRRIEMRENEK - BFEBlumarine

Sa Sa Ebeca's nationwide retail network in the near future. KMontana + BERINELZ - WHREBARSE RSP KR
EERTEPREE -

With the PRC's accession to the World Trade Organisation, the retail market

in China is growing in vitality. Sa Sa already enjoys strong brand BEPEMALE - FETEMSELRER - 55
recognition in mainland China and is highly regarded as a trustworthy ERRNEZARSNAEE  WHEEBELRRA
cosmetics retailer by consumers. Moreover, Sa Sa's one-stop-shop ERZIbMBTER - wih - FH -8 E
concept of providing a wide range of products and quality service - 2 RERRMBEZINEMRSEERRY
is unique in the mainland China, where large-scale cosmetic chains EERNME - W55 EE - BARRERHRATR L
are unknown and there is a strong demand for overseas cosmetic MmEHEE - M EHIMNE R R ERE
brands. For these reasons, we firmly believe that Sa Sa is BBt BPREHDIEEAERERARRE
well positioned to make strong inroads into this emerging ANFERTHEPESMBERME o RKREF -
market, which offers vast potential for significant growth. BB ANRRTETS - LAt BEEH
In the coming years, we remain committed to focusing on PRC RNIEB AR St R EFE o

expansion and plan to set up dedicated Sa Sa stores in China

__pamba

IKE

in the near future.
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Future Growth

Overall, by leveraging on our competitive strengths, we are building a solid
foundation for future growth. Those strengths include established brand
awareness and reputation, a strong and loyal customer base (including the PRC
tourists), a widespread sales network and market presence in the region,
extensive sourcing ability with strong bargaining power, and our proven experience

in the cosmetics business.

At the same time, the Group continues to exercise vigilant cost controls, striving
to improve operational efficiency and profit margins. In the year ahead, we will
make concerted efforts to further enhance the performance of the Group's
newly acquired businesses. There is no doubt that our core business, cosmetic
retailing, remains strong and provides a solid foundation for the Group's future

growth.
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“"Make-up is the key

to looking good and
feeling great.”







T FINANCIAL REVIEW

EXRRBES

SERRESEEEL
BAT-E=TET"

HhEEZEEEZH#ES
EBEARNEATE=T

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

ZA=t—RLt £E8
The Group's total shareholders' funds were HK$792.2 million, of which reserves ZHBRRERSRE  RITFRSEBEELT AR
were HK$660.3 million at the year end. As at 31st March 2002, the Group TEL BEESAASLtBENTERTET - ERXRAE
continued to maintain a strong financial position with net cash and bank EBLENRERREREME  FHRRAERTE
balances at HK$652.6 million. The Group's working capital was HK$740.5 B EEZRANIBEBRABEMNRRIREREE -
million. With solid recurring cash flow from operations and existing cash and
bank facilities, the Group has adequate financial resources to fund its future EBAITPBRE R EZRATERNART  EERRAER

investment and expansion. RAMERETRMZINZE

Most of the cash and bank balances were deposited in the leading banks and B AR

their returns were affected by the substantial drop of bank deposit interest rates

BE_ZZ_F-A=-1+-HULZFEERESLHE (&
BERRER ROERNEX  RBABOZAE) R
BN\EZ=BEL REFRABZBENE-THE=1
gt BAZTZ#=-

during the year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total funds employed (including shareholders' funds, bank loans and overdrafts,
and obligations under finance leases) for the year ended 31st March 2002 was GEREFNBE=ZE— T ABEt+ELTRE-_ZEZ =
HK$803.0 million, which represented a 12.3% decrease over the figure of FZA=Z+—RAZEB-_E—FB~TE

g

HK$915.3 million for the year ended 31st March 2001. BEQRERE -

The decrease in inventories from HK$316.7 million last year to HK$216.6 million SER_TE_FRITTE-F-A-+-AZEREE
as at 31st March 2002 enhanced the working capital of the Group. HRT -BERLELRBEBEREIRSRTFREREEE
Ztfl e

The gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total loans less cash balances to total

assets, was nil as at 31st March 2002 and 2001.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach in financial risk
management. The majority of the Group borrowings were in Hong Kong dollar
and were arranged on a floating rate basis. The Group does not have significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations as most of its assets, receipts and
payments are in Hong Kong or U.S. dollars. The Group will, however, monitor
its foreign exchange position and, when appropriate, the Group will hedge its

foreign exchange exposure by way of forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Group's treasury management policy is not to engage in any highly leveraged

or speculative derivative products.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

The assets of certain Group subsidiaries, including fixed assets with a net book
value of HK$13.0 million, have been pledged to secure general banking facilities
amounting to HK$3.6 million, of which HK$2.6 million has currently been
utilized. As at 315t March 2002, a property of a subsidiary with a net book

value of HK$3.0 million had been pledged against an installment loan.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group's contingent liabilities as at 315t March 2002 were HK$28.1 million,

comprising letters of credit and bank guarantees issued in lieu of deposits.
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Exclusive brand hair care products for which Sa Sa is sole agent
DHEETEEEEERNBRNE




“Beauty is the
~ perfect balance

of iInner and outer self.”
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon*, Chairman

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon, aged 49, is the Chairman of Sa Sa. Together with
his wife, Eleanor, Mr. Kwok founded the company in 1978 and successfully listed
the company on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in June 1997 with the share
offering more than 500 times oversubscribed. Over the past two decades, Mr.
Kwok transformed the company from a two-person, 40-sg-ft. store into a regional
network of operations with over 1,800 employees, over 50 retail outlets and 160
counters in major Asian markets, successfully carving out the important market
niche that the Group now occupies. Mr. Kwok is currently the Honorary President

of the Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong.

KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor*, Vice-Chairman

Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor, aged 48, who co-founded the company
with her husband, has more than 29 years experience in the sales and marketing
of cosmetics products. With extensive professional knowledge and many years
of experience in cosmetics retailing, she pioneered the unique operational concept
of open-shelf display of products, offering customers the convenience of choosing
and sampling from a wide range of products to make shopping a more enjoyable
experience. Mrs. Kwok plays a leading role in the development of the Group's
corporate image and staff training. Prior to starting the business, she was a beauty

consultant for a household cosmetic brand name.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee#

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee, aged 48, has served as a Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of Audit Committee of the Group since November 1999. Professor
Chan is currently the Vice President for Academic Affairs as well as Professor of
Finance at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (HKUST). Previously,
he was the Founding Dean of the HKUST Business School from 1993 to 2000.
He obtained a Ph.D. in finance, an MBA and M.A. in economics from the University
of California at Berkeley. He is a member of the American Finance Association,

Asia Pacific Finance Association and Hong Kong Securities Institute.

* A Member of the Executive Committee
# A Member of the Audit Committee
A A Member of the Compensation Committee

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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Mr. CHENG, Ming Fun, Paul, JP, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since February 2000. He was formerly Chairman of
Inchape Pacific Limited, N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited and the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce as well as a member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council. He is currently a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club and holds a number of directorships in listed companies in both Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. He has been an adjunct professor of Management of
Organizations at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and is also

a member of the Council of the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mrs. LEE, Look Ngan Kwan, Christina, aged 77, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director in May 1997. She is the widow of the founder of Television Broadcasts
Limited, Mr. Lee Hsiao-Wo. Mrs. Lee has been a director of Television Broadcasts
Limited since 1981 and is actively involved in Caritas, Hong Kong, a local charitable

organization.

Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas, aged 53, was appointed to the Board in January
2000. He has over 20 years' experience in management consultancy and is an
expert in the design and implementation of leading edge human resources policies.
Dr. Leung holds a Ph.D. in Business Administration from the University of lllinois.
He is very active in public service and was formerly Chief Executive - Asia, for

Hay Group, one of the world's leading management consultancies.

Mr. LOOK, Guy, aged 46, was appointed Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the
Group in March 2002. Prior to joining Sa Sa, Mr. Look was the CFO and an
Executive Director of Tom.com Limited. Mr. Look has over 20 years of experience
in local and overseas financial and general management, and was a Deputy
Managing Director of ONFEM Holdings Limited; a Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of Tung Wing Steel Holdings Limited (renamed Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Co. Ltd.) and a Director of Santai Manufacturing Limited
(renamed Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Ltd.); all of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Commerce from the University of Birmingham, England and is an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered of Accountants in England and

Wales, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
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SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

Ms. LI, Ping Yee, Louisa, aged 45, was appointed as Senior Vice President - Beauty
Services for the Group in July 2002. She is responsible for the management and
development of the Group's Beauty Services business throughout the region,
including Phillip Wain and Sa Sa Beauty+. Ms. Li has over 18 years of experience
in beauty, slimming and hair care services, including three years managing cosmetic
brands at Loreal Group, and the last five years as Operations Director for an
international chain of beauty and slimming centers in Asia. Ms. Li graduated in

business studies from York University, Canada.

Mr. CHAN, Cheuk Kai, Chris, aged 42, joined Sa Sa as Vice President of Information
Technology in September 1999. Previously, he worked in Vanda Computer &
Equipment Co. Ltd. from which he gained cutting-edge knowledge providing
consultancy services for clients of various industries including garment, toys,
electronics manufacturing and airfreight. Prior to this, he worked as MIS Director
of Giordano Group and was responsible for system development and setting up
computer sites in Hong Kong and the PRC. He also served ESPRIT De Corp (Far
East) Ltd., Fang Brothers Knitting Ltd. and Carlingford Life & General Assurance.
Mr. Chan has the NCC Certificate in System Analysis and Design certified by

National Computer Centre in the U.K.

Mr. LAW, Kin Ming, Peter, aged 46, is Vice President of Product Development
and Purchasing. He joined the Group in January 1996. Mr. Law has more than
20 years' experience in the field of sales and marketing, nine of which were in
senior management positions. Mr. Law oversees the Group's product development
and purchasing including local and regional purchasing operations. He is also
responsible for the Group's acquisition of exclusive distribution rights and
development of own brands. He holds a bachelor's degree in arts majoring in
communication studies from the University of Windsor, Ontario, Canada. Then
he pursued a bachelor's degree in commerce in 1981. Mr. Law is Mrs. Kwok's

brother.
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LEE, Tee Chin, Vice President, General Manager of Singapore

Mr. LEE, Tee Chin, aged 40, joined Sa Sa in May 1997 and was appointed Vice
President - General Manager of Singapore in January 2001. Previously, he was
the Financial Controller of the Singapore Operations. He has accumulated over
16 years' experience in finance and general management in the trading & retail
industry. Before joining the Company, he served as the Group Chief Accountant
at Dickson Trading (Singapore) and a professional accountant at Ernst & Young.
Mr. Lee holds a bachelor's degree in Accountancy from the National University
of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants

of Singapore.

LOI, Wei Sin, Corina, Vice President, General Manager of Malaysia

Ms. LOI, aged 42, joined Sa Sa in October 1997 and was appointed Vice President
- General Manager of Malaysia in January 2001. She was a crucial member of
the start-up team for Malaysian operations. Ms. Loi has over 19 years of marketing
and retail experience ranging from health food products to high fashion. Prior

to joining Sa Sa, she was with the Dickson Trading (Singapore).

TANG, Wing Kei, Joe, Vice President, Sales Operations & Administration

Mr. TANG, Wing Kei, Joe, aged 40, joined Sa Sa as Vice President of Sales
Operations & Administration in January 2002. He has more than 17 years working
experience, of which 10 years were in retail sector. He was the General Manager
of "Toy R Us" managing the 5 mega stores in Hong Kong. Before joining Sa Sa,

he was the General Manager of Dickson Cyberconcept. He holds a MBA degree

from the University of Hull, U.K.
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7 BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TSE, Ping Shing, Ricky, Vice President, Compliance & Internal Control and

Company Secretary

Mr. TSE, Ping Shing, Ricky, aged 41, joined Sa Sa as Vice President of Compliance
& Internal Control and as Company Secretary in November, 1999. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining Sa Sa, he was Finance and
Administration Controller of JOS Distribution, a division of Jardine Matheson &
Co. Ltd. Prior to that, he also held managerial position with System-Pro Computers
Ltd. He started his career in CPA firms and gained substantial experience in internal
auditing from working with reputable companies, including Wellcome Co. Ltd.
and Inchcape Group. Mr. Tse is a graduate of the University of Leicester, the

United Kingdom and holds a Master of Science Degree in Finance.

WONG, Sau Han, Carmen, Vice President, Human Resources

Ms. WONG, Sau Han, Carmen, aged 42, joined Sa Sa in December 2001 as the
Vice President - Human Resources. She has over 20 years of professional experience
in Human Resources, of which the past 11 years were in the retail industry. Prior
to joining Sa Sa, Ms. Wong was the HR Director of a Hong Kong listed retail
company. She obtained her Master degree in Human Resources Management

from Salford University in the UK.

WONG, Tai Chung, Kenneth, Vice President of Finance & Accounting

Mr. WONG, Tai Chung, Kenneth, aged 39, joined Sa Sa as Vice President of
Finance & Accounting in June 2001. He is a fellow member of Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. Prior to Sa Sa, he held various senior positions in BAA Group,
OneResource Group, Wellcome, Dairy Farm Group and A.S. Watson Group where
he gained over 15 years solid finance and accounting experience in various
industries and extensive experience and knowledge in mergers and acquisition,
divestment and setting up joint ventures in Asia, Australasia and Europe. He
also has wide experience in retail strategic management, business and
shareholders' base diversification, business re-engineering and setting
up shared service finance, central procurement and logistics functions.

Mr. Wong received his MBA from the University of Hull, U.K.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £F&#H&E

The directors present their report together with the audited accounts of the

Company and the Group for the year ended 31st March 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of a wide range of
brand name cosmetic products and the provision of beauty and health club

services.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation for the year by
principal activities and geographical areas of operation is set out in note 2 to

the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account

on page 65.

An interim dividend of 1.0 HK cents (2001: 1.0 HK cents) per share was paid
on 16th January 2002. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 4.0 HK cents (2001: 4.0 HK cents) per share. Total dividends paid
and declared for the year ended 31st March 2002 amounted to
HK$64,128,000.

BEEEREANFAEARRBE_TT_F=A=1—H
I FRE2REREEZERE -

ITEXRBRRUED X

ARBEIBEBARAER AWNBARTENESER
bt i 2 TEMIL T B RIREEAME D LRS-

ARERFERIBXRGREEHWRE D 2 EXERGHH
BIEIRZ DTEN AR B P FE2 ©

ARRBERZZEZ_F—A+BREFHREER1.0
B (ZZZ2—F1.081) - EFSRZIRERBKS
FR40BM (ZTT—F4.051) HE-TT=F=A
=+ —HIEFEERREBIRRSA 64,128,000 T-

ARERERAR —FF

S ZETFER



g

Ht
>3d
Off
B

" REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS «cowmueny EEE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY HBREE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEEBRERATHFEzE£E BEREERENT:

financial years is set out as follows:

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(BF7R) (EFHIR) (EFMIER)  (BHIR)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BEF T BEF T BEF T BT T

Turnover e 1,537,411 1,439,369 1,316,614 1,268,247 1,249,329

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B18) A (64,196) (74,410) 79,012 (91,296) 305,065

Taxation (charge)/credit BB () #E (9,652) (7,746) (5,516) 3,257 (26,489)

Minority interests LERFERER 2,673 (2,095) - - (169)

(Loss)/profit attributable to PR R PR A (71,175) (84,251) 73,496 (88,039) 278,407

shareholders (E518) /% F

Total assets BERE 1,094,152 1,175,472 1,228,456 1,202,865 1,491,213

Total liabilities BERE (295,595)  (262,527)  (106,314)  (100,321)  (159,237)

Minority interests LR RER (6,379) 32,181 - - (4,138)

Net assets BEFE 792,178 945,126 1,122,142 1,102,544 1,327,838
Notes: Bt

1. Loss before taxation for the year ended 31st March 2001 has been restated to
reflect the impairment loss on goodwill as explained in the principal accounting
policy set out in note 1(f)(i) to the accounts. This change has no effect on the
closing retained earnings for the relevant year.

2. In accordance with the revised Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 9
“Events after the Balance Sheet Date” issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, dividends proposed by the Company after the balance sheet date
may no longer be treated as a liability at the balance sheet date. Total liabilities
and net assets for the year ended 31st March 1998 to the year ended 31st March
2001 inclusive have been restated to reflect this change in accounting policy.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS covmuen EF

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The aggregate percentage of sales and purchases attributable to the Group'’s

five largest customers and suppliers respectively are less than 30% of the

total sales and purchases for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 20 to the accounts.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in note 13

to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year

are set out in note 19 to the accounts.

SHARE OPTIONS

(I) Share Option Scheme

(a) Purpose

The Company's Share Option Scheme (“the Scheme”) was adopted

and became effective on 22nd May 1997 for the purpose of

providing incentives to directors and eligible employees by the

granting of share options.

(b) Qualifying Participants

Under the Scheme, options may be granted to directors, senior

executives or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTinueD)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (excluding shares issued pursuant to
the Scheme). The maximum entitlement of each participant is 25%
of the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may

be granted as calculated above.

Option Exercise Period

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option is determined by the Board from time to time, except that
such period shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option. The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised is determined by the Board

from time to time.

Exercise Price and Consideration

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall not
be less than the higher of the nominal value of a share and 80% of
the average of the closing prices of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option. Effective
from 1st September 2001, the exercise price must be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of option
grant, which must be a business day, and (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant in accordance with paragraph 17.03 of the Listing

Rules.

Consideration to be paid on each grant of option is HK$1.00. Full

amount of the exercise price must be paid on the exercise of option.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED) HERRRE (o)

(f)  Remaining Life of the Scheme () FEREAEZHAT B

LB ZERHMATE AHN_FFLEFERA
Zt+—H#&E-

The Scheme has a life of ten years and shall expire on 21st May
2007.
BEAER BRI

(9) Options granted to Employees under Continuous Contracts (9)

RIZZ_F=A=+—H0 REEBEANES
ZARBITEBREFEOT -

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31st March 2002

which were granted to employees under continuous contracts are

as follows:—
Options
Options Options  outstanding
Options Options exercised lapsed as at 31st
outstanding as at granted during during  March 2002
31st March 2001 during the year theyear RZBE=f
Subscription RZEB-§ the year RER BMER  ZA=T-H
Date of grant  price per share Exercisable period Vesting period =ZB=t-H RERRM 2ETR %% RETHR
RtAH ERENABE ES AEARES  REOREZERE ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE
note (i)
MEE()
9th September 1997 HK$2.01 9th September 1997 - 1,808,000 - - - 1,808,000
—“MEEARNR 2018 to 8th September 2007
—“NMEEAANRE
“EZLENANA
9th September 1997 HK$2.01 8th September 1998 1 year 1,808,000 - - - 1,808,000
—“WEEARNR 2018 to 8th September 2007 -
“MNENANBE
ZEZEEAANA
9th September 1997 HK$1.90 8th September 1998 1 year 7,098,000 - - - 7,098,000
—“WNEENANE 19087 to 8th September 2007 —F
“NAANEARNRE
ZEZEEAANA
7th May 1999 HK$0.648 7th May 1999 - 3,240,000 - (3,240,000) - -
—“MANERALR 0.648%T to 6th May 2009 note (ii)
“NMANEFERLRE iksi(D)
“EENERAKRA
10th April 2000 HK$1.25 30th September 2002 2.5 years 3,194,000 - - (3,194,000) -
ZZTTENA+A 1.25%7T to 10th April 2010 ¥
ZEZENRZTHE
“E-TEEATH
ARERERAT —FT—/ —TE-FEH
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTinuED) B RE )
Options
Options Options  outstanding
Options Options exercised lapsed as at 31st
outstanding as at granted during during  March 2002
31st March 2001 during the year theyear R=FE=
Subscription R-ZE-§ the year RER RER  ZAZ1-H
Date of grant  price per share Exercisable period  Vesting period =B=t+-H REREH EETE b3 FETR
RN BRRHZBE T AEARES  RECE2ERE ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE
note (i)
()
14th April 2000 HK$1.22 14th April 2003 3 years 323,000 - - (323,000) -
“ZZREMATIA 12287 to 14th April 2010 =f
ERCEMATNAR
TEMATEA
14th June 2000 HK$0.96 14th June 2003 3 years 229,000 N N N 229,000
“ETEEATHA 0.968TT to 14th June 2010 =
ZER=HSATHERE
ZE-ZERATEA
19th June 2000 HK$0.94 19th June 2003 3 years 217,391 - - - 217,391
“ETEERATNE 0.94%7 to 19th June 2010 =% note (iv)
ZER=ERATABE M (iv)
ZE-ZEXATIA
21st June 2000 HK$0.93 21st June 2001 1 year 504,000 - - (92,000) 412,000
ZE2ETERAZT-A 09387 to 21st June 2010 —f
ZEE-FXAZT-RZ
ZE2-FFRAZT-A
21st June 2000 K$0.93 21st June 2002 2 years 504,000 - - (92,000) 412,000
ZE2ETERAZT-A 0.93%7T to 21st June 2010 k=
“EXEZt-RZE
TEAAZT-H
19th July 2000 HK$0.92 19th July 2003 3 years 170,940 - - (170,940) -
“ZZTELATNE 0.9287 to 19th July 2010 =
“ER-ELATABE
ZE-ZELATA
4th June 2001 HK$0.68 4th June 2002 1 year - 196,078 - - 196,078
—2Z-%AMA 0.6875 T to 4th June 2011 —F note (iii)
“ZRCERAMAE - st (i)
—E——%AWEA
4th June 2001 HK$0.68 4th June 2003 2 years - 196,078 - - 196,078
—2Z-%AMA 0.6875 T to 4th June 2011 -F note (iii)
“ZR=FAMA - 3 (i)
E-Z-——5 ANA
4th June 2001 HK$0.68 4th June 2004 3 years - 196,079 - - 196,079
“ZZ-45XAMA 0.68/E T to 4th June 2011 = note (iii)
“TINFAANBZE k(i)
—F——%~AMEA

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2001/2002
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year, 3,871,940 share options lapsed upon resignation of several

employees in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

During the year, 3,240,000 share options were exercised by an ex-director of the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The closing price of the

shares immediately before the date of exercise is HK$0.77.

During the year, 588,235 share options were granted to an employee of the
Company. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which

the options were granted is HK$0.86.

Subsequent to the year end, 217,391 share options lapsed upon resignation of an

employee in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

Subsequent to the year end, 13,791,285 share options were granted to employees

of the Company as follows:-

(1) 4,000,000 share options granted on 24th April 2002 at an exercise price of
HK$0.80 per share which was to become exercisable for the period from

24th April 2003 to 24th April 2012. The vesting period is one year.

(2) 5,000,000 share options granted on 24th April 2002 at an exercise price of
HK$0.80 per share which was to become exercisable for the period from

24th April 2004 to 24th April 2012. The vesting period is two years.
(3) 4,791,285 share options granted on 24th April 2002 at an exercise price of

HK$0.80 per share which was to become exercisable for the period from
24th April 2005 to 24th April 2012. The vesting period is three years.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options
were granted is HK$0.79.

(h) Options granted to Directors

No option has been granted to the directors of the Company during

the year under the Scheme (2001: Nil).
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTinueD)

(I1) Share Options under an Ex-director’s Service Agreement (“Service

Agreement”)

The Company has granted to Mr. KING, Roger (“Mr. KING"), an ex-
director of the Company, share options in accordance with the terms
set out in a service agreement entered between the Company and Mr.
KING on 2nd August 1999 which was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at an extraordinary general meeting on 14th September
1999. The details of the share options outstanding as at 31st March

2002 which were granted to Mr. KING are set out as follows:

1]]!>

R

BREw

(n

—(UATES 2 RBWHE ((REHE]) ZBRE

AARAR—NAANFNAZHEARA —ZAES
SEBEL (T2EE]) BRI —DRBHE ZHhE
ER—AANAFARTEHBERRRARREINAE
BE-REZRBEHBOGER ARRARTEEE—
HEEE R-—FT_F=A=T-RARETEZE
B BT -

Closing price Options Options
per share outstanding  Options Options Options  outstanding
immediately asat31st  granted exercised lapsed as at 31st
Subscription before the Vesting March 2001 during during during  March 2002
price  date of grant Exercisable period RZZZ-F  theyear theyear  theyear RZZE-F
Date of grant pershare FEBREN-X period TR ZBZ+-B RERERE REACETE  RERAM ZASt+-A%
RtAH BRRHZBE BB E s BEH RECRZERE  2BRE ZBRE ZERE EBOEBRE
14th September ~ HK$0.928 HK$0.52  14th September 1999 - 14,521,054 9,171,192 - - 23,692,246
1999 to 2nd 09287 to HK$1.52 to 2nd February 2007
March 2002 0528TE —NAWELARTERE
“hWANE 15287 “ETLE-ACH
NATMEZE
it k2
=—AZH
Note: Bt

(if)

Due to the large number of monthly grants of options under the service agreement,
certain information such as the date of grant and the closing prices of the shares
immediately before the date on which the options were granted are shown in a

summarised manner.

Subsequent to the year end, a further of 3,821,341 share options were granted to

the ex-director.
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SHARE OPTIONS (conTiNUED)

The financial impact of options granted is not recorded in the Group’s accounts
until such time as the options are exercised. Upon the exercise of the options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of shares is recorded by the Company
in the share premium account. Options which are lapsed prior to their exercise

date are deleted from the outstanding options.

The directors do not consider it appropriate to state the value of the options
granted during the year as a number of variables which are crucial for the
calculation of the options value have not been determined. The directors
believe that any calculation of the value of the options based on a great
number of speculative assumptions would not be meaningful and would be

misleading.

The Stock Exchange announced certain amendments to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules in respect of share option schemes on 23rd August 2001 which
came into effect on 1st September 2001. In compliance with the amendments
to the Listing Rules, the directors consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to terminate the Scheme and to adopt a new share option scheme.
An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the Company’s forthcoming Annual
General Meeting for the approval of the said adoption of the new share option

scheme and termination of the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there are no restrictions against such rights under the

laws in the Cayman Islands.
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REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, the Company has repurchased at HK$15,618,863 for a total
of its 25,444,000 fully paid up shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited, all of which had been duly cancelled, as follows:—

N

g

il

B HEIEE RN

ARARFNRBEHERSMAERDE ([BRFT]) BE
RNAREBERNE ££25,444,0000% £45 515,618,863

BT BN EREEE FEOT -

Purchase price

per share

No. of shares Total BRBEAE
repurchased consideration (Note) Highest Lowest
Month of Repurchase BE &5 A % BEROBE B (M) &S RIK
HK$ HK$ HK$
(B7T) () (B7T)
April 2001 —ET—FmA 3,340,000 2,601,894 0.78 0.76
September 2001 —ET-FNA 9,554,000 5,497,428 0.60 0.54
October 2001 —ET—F1A 4,260,000 2,973,409 0.71 0.67
December 2001 —ZZE—5+ZH 1,678,000 901,123 0.56 0.53
January 2002 —EE-F—R 4,070,000 2,161,865 0.54 0.51
February 2002 —TET-F-A 1,686,000 974,646 0.58 0.56
March 2002 —EE-F=R 856,000 508,498 0.60 0.58

25,444,000 15,618,863

Subsequent to the year end and up to the date of this report, the Company

FHAREAREZ R AR IRBRABEARTE

repurchased at HK$36,213,232 for a total of 47,138,000 fully paid up shares @ RKR{H & #£47,138,0000% £ % 436,213,23287C %
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of which had been duly  #t {7 EBEGEH FHBWT -
cancelled, as follows:—
Purchase price
per share
No. of shares Total BRBEAE
repurchased consideration (Note) Highest Lowest
Month of Repurchase BE 5 A% BEROSE BeEE () B= &
HK$ HK$ HK$
(B7) (B7) (&)
April 2002 T -FWA 10,888,000 8,366,239 0.80 0.66
May 2002 —ZZ-_FHA 11,550,000 8,904,789 0.79 0.72
June 2002 —ETEZFRA 24,700,000 18,942,204 0.78 0.75
47,138,000 36,213,232
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REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

(CONTINUED)

The directors consider the share purchases will lead to an enhancement of

the Group's future earnings per share.

On 8th February 2002, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has granted
to the Company a waiver pursuant to Rule 10.06(2)(g) of Listing Rules in
respect of the 25 percent monthly share repurchases restriction set out in
Rule 10.06(2)(a) of the Listing Rules. The waiver is effective for a period of
six months from 8th February 2002 to 8th August 2002.

Apart from the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

Note:

The total consideration included the purchase price, brokerage, transaction levy, trading

fee, contract stamp, stock withdrawal fee and CCASS charge.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2002 are set

out in note 33 to the accounts.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts as at 31st March 2002 are
set out in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and notes 25 and 29 to the accounts

respectively.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March 2002, the reserves of the Company available for distribution
amounted to HK$1,047,636,000.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations during the year totalling HK$125,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were:—

Executive Directors

Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon

Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor

Mr. KING, Roger

- service agreement completed on 10th May 2002

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. COULL, Gary William John
- retired at the Annual General Meeting held on 30th August 2001

Mrs. LEE, Look Ngan Kwan, Christina

Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee

- term of directorship for three years commenced on 1st November 1999

Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas

- term of directorship for three years commenced on 1st January 2000

Mr. CHENG, Ming Fun, Paul

- term of directorship for two years commenced on 1st February 2001
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS (conTINUED)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee and Mr. CHENG Ming Fun, Paul retire at the coming
Annual General Meeting. Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee being eligible, offers

himself for re-election.

Save as disclosed above, the director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting does not have a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party, and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PARTICULARS OF SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND ASSOCIATES

As at 31st March 2002, the directors, chief executives and their associates
had the following interests in the share capital of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of

g
Hlt
>3d
Iff

EE ITERTRAERBMEBALEERND
21

—R-BEZ IETBRABRRES
ZHMBEAIRARRREEMBEEE (FERES (WE
) G (HRBEERED])) RADREA AT RERE

Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”)) which require notification  #EIEPIE28(FH LT AR ELETES R H 2 EETH|
pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or the Model Code for Securities  ([#Z%578I)) BT NE 2z SR BEHBEEFIEHIF29
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) or as  §BN AZIEHIFTIE 2 B 2
recorded in the register maintained pursuant to Section 29 of the
SDI Ordinance:
Number of shares beneficially held
ERBAEZROEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interest interest interest interest
BAER EEER RERER HitEm
Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon (Note 1) WAL (M) 20,364,000 898,506,400 - -
Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor (Note 1) FEEL 2+ (HE1) - 898,506,400 - -
Mr. KING, Roger (Note 2) SEB LA (H2) 7,833,328 - 8,405,172 -
Mrs. LEE, Look Ngan Kwan, Christina FIFEE R 2 £ 148,000 - - -
Note: BiaE:

1. These shares are held as to 696,780,000 shares by Sunrise Height Incorporated
and as to 201,726,400 shares by Green Ravine Limited. Both Sunrise Height
Incorporated and Green Ravine Limited are owned as to 50% each by Mr. KWOK,
Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor.

In addition, Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor
are each taken to be interested in all the issued non-voting deferred shares of Sa
Sa Cosmetic Company Limited, Sa Sa Investment Limited, Matford Trading Limited
and Base Sun Investment Limited, all wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor is also taken to be interested in all the issued
non-voting deferred shares of Vance Trading Limited.

2. The Service Agreement of Mr. KING was completed on 10th May 2002.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executives and their associates have any
beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SDI Ordinance and the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 22nd May 1997, the Company’s directors may, at their discretion,
invite executive directors and full time employees of the Group to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated therein.

Save as disclosed under the “Share Option” and “Connected Transaction”
sections, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age), to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, certain members of the Group entered into transactions
which were “connected transactions” as defined by the Listing Rules. Details

of such transactions are as follows:—

Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited and Lisbeth Enterprises Limited¥

During the year ended 31st March 2002, Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited
(“Sa Sa Cosmetic”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, sold goods
to Lisbeth Enterprises Limited (“Lisbeth”), a 58.33% owned subsidiary of
the Company, in its ordinary course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The total purchase price payable by Lisbeth to Sa Sa Cosmetic as at
31st March 2002 was approximately HK$2,062,000. After adjusting for
differences in closing stock between 31st March 2002 and 31st March 2001,
net sales from Sa Sa Cosmetic to Lisbeth was approximately HK$2,221,000
(2001: Sales of approximately HK$1,365,000 was made by Sa Sa Cosmetic
to Lisbeth. After adjusting for closing stock, the net sales amount was
approximately HK$686,000). As at 31st March 2002, the net amount due
from Lisbeth to Sa Sa Cosmetic was approximately HK$1,620,000 (2001:
HK$1,365,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

Sa Sa Cosmetic Co. (S) Pte. Ltd. and

Phillip Wain International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.*

During the year ended 31st March 2002, Sa Sa Cosmetic Co. (S) Pte. Ltd.
("Sa Sa Singapore”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, sold goods
to Phillip Wain International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Phillip Wain Singapore”),
a 58.33% owned subsidiary of the Company, in its ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms. The total purchase price payable by Phillip
Wain Singapore to Sa Sa Singapore as at 31st March 2002 was approximately
HK$621,000. After adjusting for differences in closing stock between 31st
March 2002 and 31st March 2001, net sales from Sa Sa Singapore to Phillip
Wain Singapore was approximately HK$332,000 (2001: nil). As at 31st March
2002, the net amount due from Phillip Wain Singapore to Sa Sa Singapore
was approximately HK$379,000 (2001: nil).

Hong Kong Sa Sa (M) Sdn. Bhd. and Phillip Wain (M) Sdn. Bhd.*

During the year ended 31st March 2002, Hong Kong Sa Sa (M) Sdn. Bhd.
("Sa Sa Malaysia”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, sold goods
to Phillip Wain (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“Phillip Wain Malaysia”), a 58.33% owned
subsidiary of the Company, in its ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms. The total purchase price payable by Phillip Wain Malaysia
to Sa Sa Malaysia as at 31st March 2002 was approximately HK$87,000.
After adjusting for differences in closing stock between 31st March 2002
and 31st March 2001, net sales from Sa Sa Malaysia to Phillip Wain Malaysia
was approximately HK$24,000 (2001: nil). As at 31st March 2002, the net
amount due from Phillip Wain Malaysia to Sa Sa Malaysia was approximately

HK$11,000 (2001: nil).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conTINuED)

Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited and Ebeca Cosmetic (Holding) Limited*

During the year ended 31st March 2002, Sa Sa Cosmetic sold goods to Ebeca
Cosmetic (Holding) Limited (“Ebeca”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen
Sa Sa Ebeca Enterprise Limited, which is a 55% owned subsidiary of the
Company, in its ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.
The total purchase price payable by Ebeca to Sa Sa Cosmetic as at 31st March
2002 was approximately HK$578,000 (2001: nil).

During the year ended 31st March 2002, Ebeca sold goods to Sa Sa Cosmetic
in its ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms. The total
purchase price payable by Sa Sa Cosmetic to Ebeca as at 31st March 2002
was approximately HK$635,000 (2001: nil). As at 31st March 2002, the net
amount due from Sa Sa Cosmetic to Ebeca is approximately HK$105,000

(2001: nil).

# The above transactions were entered into as Lisbeth, its subsidiaries and Ebeca
were viewed as an extension of retail outlets of Sa Sa Cosmetic and its subsidiaries.

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. PHILLIPS, Edwin John

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. WAIN, Barry Richard

On 31st July 2000, the Company entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
whereby the Company conditionally agreed to acquire from Mr. WAIN, Barry
Richard (“Mr. WAIN") his entire 5,000 shares in Lisbeth, representing 50%
of its issued share capital at that time for a consideration of approximately

HK$79 million.

On the same day, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement,
whereby the Company conditionally agreed to subscribe for 2,000 new shares
in Lisbeth, which together with the 5,000 shares acquired from Mr. WAIN
representing approximately 58.33% of its enlarged issued share capital, for

a consideration of approximately HK$31 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. PHILLIPS, Edwin John

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. WAIN, Barry Richard (continued)

When the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Subscription Agreement were
completed on 31st August 2000, the Company entered into two Option
Agreements with Mr. PHILLIPS, Edwin John (“Mr. PHILLIPS"), an ex-director
of Lisbeth. Under the first Option Agreement, the Company was given an
option to acquire 2,000 shares in Lisbeth, representing 16.67% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Lisbeth, from Mr. PHILLIPS within a period of
one year from 31st August 2000 for a consideration of approximately HK$31
million. Under the second Option Agreement, if the first Option Agreement
is completed, Mr. PHILLIPS has an option to require the Company to acquire
the remaining shares in Lisbeth held by Mr. PHILLIPS, representing 25% of its
entire issued share capital within 5 years from completion of the first Option

Agreement.

As part of the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Subscription
Agreement, each of Mr. PHILLIPS and Mr. WAIN signed two promissory notes
(“the Promissory Notes”) on 31st August 2000 in the aggregate amount of
HK$12,024,573 and HK$12,014,472 respectively in favour of Lisbeth. Of the
total loan balances, HK$1,168,683 is interest-bearing at 8.5% per annum.
The remaining loan balances are interest free. All the loans are unsecured
and are repayable upon the earlier of (i) one year from 31st August 2000 or
(ii) date of completion of the first Option Agreement. In the event that the
amount due under the Promissory Notes are not paid in full when due, Lisbeth
is entitled to charge interest on such unpaid amount (to the extent permitted
by applicable law) for the period from the date such amount was due until
such amount shall have been paid in full at such interest rate per annum as is
equal to 3% per annum over the prime lending rate quoted from time to
time by The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“Default
Interest Charges”). Both Mr. PHILLIPS and Mr. WAIN defaulted in payment of
the Promissory Notes when they were due on 31st August 2001. As a result
of the default in payment by Mr. PHILLIPS and Mr. WAIN, Default Interest
Charges on the Promissory Notes were raised against Mr. PHILLIPS and Mr.
WAIN. As at 31st March 2002, an amount of HK$14,168,000 (2001:
HK$11,542,685) and HK$12,648,000 (2001: HK$11,119,059) were due from
Mr. PHILLIPS and Mr. WAIN respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (conmmuen Z

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conTiNuED)

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. PHILLIPS, Edwin John

Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and Mr. WAIN, Barry Richard (continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2002, interest and Default Interest Charges
amounting to HK$1,603,000 were raised against Mr. PHILLIPS in respect of
amount due under the two promissory notes executed by Mr. PHILLIPS in
favour of Lisbeth, expenses paid by Lisbeth on behalf of Mr. PHILLIPS and
withdrawals made by Mr. PHILLIPS from Lisbeth.

During the year ended 31st March 2002, interest and Default Interest Charges
amounting to HK$1,530,000 were raised against Mr. WAIN in respect of
amount due under the two promissory notes executed by Mr. WAIN in favour

of Lisbeth.

Loans to Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries

On 11th June 2002, Sa Sa Cosmetic, Sa Sa Singapore and Sa Sa Malaysia
(“the Lenders"), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in Hong
Kong, Singapore and Malaysia respectively, advanced loans in the principal
sum of HK$1,000,000, S$700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,017,000) and M$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,060,000) to Lisbeth, Phillip Wain Singapore and Phillip Wain Malaysia
("the Borrowers”) respectively, indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia respectively. The loans bear
interest at annual rates equal to the prime lending rate quoted by The Hong
Kong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited at its principal office at Hong
Kong for the loan to Lisbeth, the prime lending rate quoted by The Hong
Kong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited at its principal office in
Singapore for the loan to Phillip Wain Singapore and the base lending rate
quoted by Malayan Banking Berhad Limited at its principal office in Kuala
Lumpur for the loan to Phillip Wain Malaysia and are repayable on demand.
No security was granted by the Borrowers to the Lenders in relation to the
loans but the Borrowers have executed promissory notes on 11th June 2002
in favour of the Lenders evidencing the loans. The purpose of the loans is to

support the business of the Borrowers.
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" REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS comue EFE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

Service Agreement of an ex-director

On 2nd August 1999, the Company, entered into a service agreement
(“Service Agreement”) with Mr. KING, Roger (“Mr. KING") to appoint Mr.
KING as the president and chief executive officer of the Company. At the
same time, Mr. KING, who was previously an independent non-executive
director of the Company, has been appointed as an executive director of the

Company.

Pursuant to the Service Agreement, a total of 9,000,000 new shares in the
Company would be issued to Mr. KING over a period of three years as his
remuneration and he would also be granted options to subscribe for shares
(“Option Shares”) in the Company in accordance with the terms set out in
the Service Agreement. The issue of new shares and Option Shares to Mr.
KING constituted a connected transaction for the purposes of Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules which transaction was approved by shareholders of the

Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 14th September 1999.

As of 31st March 2002, a total of 16,238,500 shares were issued to Mr.

KING pursuant to the above Agreement.

The Service Agreement of Mr. KING was completed on 10th May 2002.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS covmuen EF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2002, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance, the shareholders who
had or were deemed to have interest in 10% or more of the Company’s issued

share capital were:

Name

RERERE

AN =
Ea = &)
FERRES

RZZZE_F=A=+—0 REBFEEZEHE16(1) 1§
ZHREGEBEZRZMEBERN UTREEERWEEREXR
NAIEBITRA10%8 A FHERS:

Number of ordinary shares
beneficially held
BERFEEBRHAE

Sunrise Height Incorporated

Green Ravine Limited

Note:

Both Sunrise Height Incorporated and Green Ravine Limited are owned as to 50% each

by Mr. KWOK, Siu Ming, Simon and Mrs. KWOK, Law Kwai Chun, Eleanor.

Save as disclosed above, no person was recorded in the register as having an
interest amounting to 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company

as at 31st March 2002.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

696,780,000 (Note)
(FiI3E)
201,726,400 (Note)
(F5E)

=

BOREERBEEL Z T EHB Sunrise Height Incorporated
50% A% - J7 &4 A Green Ravine Limited 50 % A4

BREXREEN RaMABSELHEMALIR-ZF
ZHEZRA=T-HEAARRABEEITRA10% AL
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" REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS comue EFE

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange throughout the year, except that two of the independent non-
executive directors are not appointed for a specific term as recommended
under paragraph 7 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules but are subject to
retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with

the Articles of Association of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, the Company has established an Audit Committee
comprising three independent non-executive directors and has adopted the
terms of reference governing the authority and duties of the Audit Committee.
On 4th December 2001, Dr. LEUNG Kwok Fai, Thomas was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee to fill the vacancy left by Mr. COULL, Gary
William John who retired as a director of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on 30th August 2001. The present members of the Audit

Committee are Professor CHAN, Yuk Shee, Mr. CHENG, Ming Fun, Paul and
Dr. LEUNG, Kwok Fai, Thomas.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment,

and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
Kwok Siu Ming, Simon

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th July 2002
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AUDITORS' REPORT #EikhsR&

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

TR 3% AR E ST B T A AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 65 to 134 which have been prepared

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which
give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and

applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,

on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and

adequately disclosed.

e Sa Sa (AR) e 09. Sa Sa Auditors e 3rd Proof e 24th July,

e
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Basis of opinion (continueb)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March 2002 and of the loss and
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19th July 2002
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For the year ended 31st March 2002

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT #

N\
BE_TT_S=A=1+—HILHFE

FEER

Restated
EHHR
2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BT T BEET T
Turnover =E 1 2 1,537,411 1,439,369
Cost of goods sold SHERKA (875,385) (804,788)
Gross profit £ 662,026 634,581
Other revenues Hib iz 2 28,132 44,150
Staff costs B TR (282,928) (263,430)
Depreciation and amortisation rEREE (59,193) (49,893)
Other operating expenses Hip 2B (308,568) (266,870)
Operating profit b 3 39,469 98,538
Finance costs BB R 4 (289) (266)
Restructuring costs and provisions for HEME AR 2 BEKK
debts of several subsidiaries RREREE 5 (64,877) =
Store closure costs EEREAEA 6 (10,665) (13,253)
Impairment of fixed assets of an EFEH —sasa.comZ
e-commerce business — sasa.com EEEERE 13(f) (8,915) -
Deficit on revaluation of leasehold T REFZEHEE
land and buildings 13(b) (18,919) -
Impairment of goodwill AmERE 1() - (159,429)
Loss before taxation PR A8 (64,196) (74,410)
Taxation I 7(a) (9,652) (7,746)
Loss after taxation KRBl EE (73,848) (82,156)
Minority interests DEREREER 2,673 (2,095)
Loss attributable to shareholders P B B {5 &5 18 8 (71,175) (84,251)
Dividends g 9 64,128 66,632
Loss per share — Basic BREE-ER 10 (5.3 cents) (6.2 cents)
SHERERERAT —TT— /ZTT
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As at 31st March 2002

®“"" CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Restated
EETIN
2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BT T PSR F T
Fixed assets EEEE 13 110,394 153,199
Intangible assets B EE 15 26,187 1,595
Deposit for investment in subsidiaries REWBAREZESE - 9,000
Investment securities REFES 1,070 1,070
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 216,644 316,670
Trade receivable R U5 B 5K 16 23,784 11,178
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HffEKFIE 12 & KB ZE 17 56,883 87,943
Tax recoverable TBHFIA 7(b) 2,220 7
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTHER 29 656,970 594,810
956,501 1,010,608
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables JE T BR TR R R AR 18 62,743 60,126
Other payables and accrued charges HiENFIEREER 71,274 43,716
Taxation payable JE B TE 7(c) 10,146 5,564
Current portion of receipts in advance T RIE 2 R & EEH 21 70,833 70,619
Current portion of obligations MEBNREZ R EEHH
under finance leases 22 30 237
Current portion of bank loan - secured RITEEZRBDEERH —FER 25 156 -
Bank overdrafts — secured RITHEE —HHEA 29 851 1,757
216,033 182,019
Net current assets FREBEE 740,468 828,589
Total assets less current liabilities EELBRTBER 878,119 993,453
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As at 31st March 2002

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET «conmuenr #7 5

Restated
gl
2002 2001
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B BET T BEF T
Financed by: BEARRR:
Share capital [N 19 131,833 133,720
Reserves &E 20 609,451 757,871
Proposed final dividend RRARERE 20 50,894 53,535
Total capital and reserves EARRERR 792,178 945,126
Minority interests DERRER 6,379 (32,181)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Receipts in advance TE U R IE 21 71,095 73,036
Obligations under finance leases BB A 2 A 22 - 353
Deferred taxation ERIER IR 23 393 2,041
Provision for long service payments RERBRE 24 4,697 5,078
Bank loan - secured RITEE —HHEM 25 3,377 -
79,562 80,508
878,119 993,453
SHBRERAERAT —FTT— /=TT

— FER
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68 — > = ==
BALANCE SHEET BEE&E
As at 31st March 2002 —ZET-F=HA=1+—H
Restated
R ETIlN
2002 2001
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 BT T BT
Subsidiaries NG 14 700,405 785,978
Investment securities REFES 950 950
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H i EURIE e RIEA A 1,710 8,832
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHEF 483,677 446,140
485,387 454,972
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accrued charges HiENFIEREER 772 999
Net current assets FRBEE 484,615 453,973
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRTBERE 1,185,970 1,240,901
Financed by: BEARR:
Share capital [N 19 131,833 133,720
Reserves 4] 20 1,003,243 1,053,646
Proposed final dividend BIRKERE 20 50,894 53,535
Total capital and reserves BEAXRRERLE 1,185,970 1,240,901
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #&aRE&RER

For the year ended 31st March 2002 BE-TT-_F-A-+—HLTFE
2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt EE BT T BT T

Net cash inflow from operating activities REEKBERANFHE 26(a) 189,840 33,131
Returns on investments and servicing RERHRRHE S H

of finance
Interest received B FE 22,943 38,322
Interest paid ERFHE (269) (80)
Interest element of finance leases BE AT S0 (20) (186)
Dividends paid BEfRE (66,771) (67,307)
Net cash outflow from returns on REBRRMBEZHZ

investments and servicing of finance ReRbFE (44,117) (29,251)
Taxation Big
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHBEBFIEH (5,010) (11,691)
Overseas tax paid E &8N EIE (4,954) (1,940)
Tax paid EaBE (9,964) (13,631)
Investing activities REXHK
Purchase of fixed assets BEETEE (42,186) (61,970)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets HEBEEEERA 901 637
Additions to deposit for investment BEANBARIESE M

in subsidiaries - (9,000)
Addition to investment securities JEZHEM - (200)
Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash BEWBAR (MBRESR

and cash equivalents) Re&EEER) 26(b) (12,187) (75,156)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEKZHLSHELFE (53,472) (145,689)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing BEAZRERA  GFH) FH 82,287 (155,440)

SHERERAERRR —TT— —TT_FFR



"*” CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT comu #1A RS

|
=+—HLEFE

For the year ended 31st March 2002 BE_TT-F
2002 2001
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i BET T BETT

Financing e 26(c)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR EREY = 2,099 1,050
Repurchase of own shares i B 78 & i (15,619) (23,417)
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (3,690) (1,000)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases fEEREML 2 EAN M (560) (1,409)
Net cash outflow from financing MEXEB RS REFHE (17,770) (24,776)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBLEEER

cash equivalents 2,/ (i) 64,517 (180,216)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April REA—BAzRE2RBELEEER 593,053 774,386
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXZgH ¥ E (1,451) (1,117)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March R=A=+-—-HHELK

R&ZEER 656,119 593,053

Analysis of balances of cash and REeRBFSZEHAETZAM

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RI|THET 656,970 594,810
Bank overdrafts RITEX (851) (1,757)

656,119 593,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES #& B Rl kBB RE

For the year ended 31st March 2002

BE-TT-_F-A-+—BILTFE

Restated
EHIIR
2002 2001
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iz BET T BETT
Exchange differences arising on translation  BNHBARIER chE =5
of the accounts of overseas subsidiaries 20(a) (1,815) (3,374)
Net losses not recognised in the ARG EBHRPEAFER
consolidated profit and loss account (1,815) (3,374)
Loss for the year REEEE (71,175) (84,251)
Goodwill directly eliminated to reserves REEREERE e 20(a) - (159,429)
Total recognised losses ERERERAE (72,990) (247,054)
Effect of the adoption of new RNt &Rz 8
accounting standards 1(f) - 159,429
(72,990) (87,625)
ARERAERAT —TB— /BTG5




""" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS HRE Mi#

1. Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

consolidated accounts are set out below:

(a)

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards

issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (“HKSA").

In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the HKSA which
are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1st
January 2001:

SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 14 (revised) Leases (effective for periods commencing

on or after 1st July 2000)

SSAP 26 Segment reporting

SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

SSAP 29 Intangible assets

SSAP 30 Business combinations

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

SSAP 32 Consolidated financial statements and

accounting for investments in subsidiaries

The effect of adopting these new standards is set out in the

accounting policies below.
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1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March. Subsidiaries are those
entities in which the Group controls the composition of the board
of directors, controls more than half of the voting power, holds
more than half of the issued share capital or the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entities so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
All significant intercompany transactions and the balances within

the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal. The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any goodwill or capital reserve
which was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated

profit and loss account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in

the operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investment in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.
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""" "NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmueny B B B

1. Principal accounting policies (continuep)

()

(d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time of cash receipt

for retail sale or the time of delivery for wholesale sale.

Revenue from beauty and health club represents membership fee
and service fee income in connection with the provision of physical
fitness and beauty treatment service. Membership fee is recognised
immediately in the month in which payment is received, whereas
service fee is recognised on a systematic basis in accordance with

service usage over a maximum period of five years.

Slide display rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking

into account the principals outstanding and interest rates applicable.

Fixed assets

(i) Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at cost or valuation,
being fair value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Fair value is
the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction,

and is determined on the basis of existing use.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

1. Principal accounting policies (continuep)
(d) Fixed assets (continued)
(i) Leasehold land and buildings (continued)

It is the Group’s policy to review regularly the fair value of fixed
assets based on independent professional valuations. If the fair
value is in excess of the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
the surplus is credited to the revaluation reserve to the extent
that it is not covered by deficits arising on prior valuations of
that asset which have been previously charged to the profit
and loss account. If the fair value is less than the carrying
amount of the relevant asset the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account to the extent that it is not covered by surpluses
arising on prior valuations of that same asset which have been
previously credited to the revaluation reserve.

(i) Depreciation of leasehold land

Leasehold land is depreciated to write off its cost less

accumulated impairment loss or valuation over the unexpired

period of the lease on a straight line basis. The principal annual

rate used for this purpose is 1.96%.

(iii) Depreciation of leasehold buildings and leasehold

improvements

Leasehold buildings and leasehold improvements are
depreciated to write off their cost less accumulated impairment
loss or valuation on the straight line basis over the unexpired
periods of the leases or their estimated useful lives of the Group
whichever is shorter. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are:

Leasehold buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements 15% - 33.3%
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""" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (commuen 5 B

1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Other tangible fixed assets

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Other tangible fixed assets
are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses on the straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives to the Group. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are:

Equipment, furniture and fixtures 15% - 33.3%
Machinery and club equipment 15% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Motor boat 20%

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in leasehold buildings, leasehold
improvements and other tangible fixed assets are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such

impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss

account.
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1.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(vii) Cost of restoring and improving fixed assets

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal
working condition are charged to the profit and loss account.
Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their

estimated useful lives to the Group.

(e) Assets under leases

(i)

(i)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
leases at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the capital balances
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in long-term liabilities. The
finance charges are charged to the profit and loss account over

the lease periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the

shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the leasing
company are charged to the profit and loss account on a

straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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*"""NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS «coumuerr & B HTEE ¢

1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(f)

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets of the

acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

In accordance with SSAP 30, goodwill on acquisitions occurring
on or after 1st April 2001 is included in intangible assets and
is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life. Goodwill is generally amortised over its estimated

useful life to a maximum period of 20 years.

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1st April 2001
was written off against reserves by the Group. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provision 1(a) in SSAP 30
and goodwill previously written off against reserves has not

been restated.

SSAP 31 prescribes procedures to be applied to ensure that
assets are carried at not more than their recoverable amounts.
The Group is required to assess at each balance sheet date
whether there are any indications that assets may be impaired,
and if there are such indications, the recoverable amount of
the assets is to be determined. Any resulting impairment losses

identified are charged to the profit and loss account.

In accordance with the provisions of Interpretation 13,
assessments of impairment of goodwill also apply to goodwill
previously eliminated against reserves which will not be restated
at the time of adoption of SSAP 30. Any impairment loss
identified in respect of goodwill previously eliminated against
reserves is to be recognised as an expense in the profit and
loss account. The adoption of SSAP 30 and the provisions of
Interpretation 13 are required to be reflected in accordance

with the requirement of SSAP 2.
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1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (continued)

(/) Goodwill (continued)

The Group has performed an assessment of the fair value of
goodwill that had previously been charged to the reserves. As
a result, the Group has retrospectively restated and decreased
its previously reported net profit for the year ended 31st March
2001 by approximately HK$159,429,000.

(ii) Trademarks

Expenses incurred by the Group in respect of registering the
Group's trademarks in various locations are amortised, using
the straight-line method, over periods not exceeding three years

starting from the date of commencement of operations.

(iii)  Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of any intangible asset, is assessed and written down

immediately to its recoverable amount.

Investment securities

Investment securities representing the Group's interest in club
debentures, are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

loss.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values have declined
below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary
has occurred, the carrying amount of such securities will be reduced
to its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in
the profit and loss account. This impairment loss is written back to
the profit and loss account when the circumstances and events that
led to the write-downs or write-offs cease to exist and there is
persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events will

persist for the foreseeable future.
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""" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmnuenr 55 B P

1. Principal accounting policies (continuep)

(h)

()

0

(k)

(1

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. In general, costs
are assigned to individual items on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the

normal course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation.

Trade and other receivables

Provision is made against trade and other receivables to the extent
that they are considered to be doubtful. Trade and other receivables

in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks

and bank overdrafts.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in
respect of timing differences between profit as computed for
taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent
that a liability or an asset is expected to be payable or recoverable

in the foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
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1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(m) Translation of foreign currencies

(n)

(o)

(p)

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the balance sheet date are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising therefrom are dealt with in the profit and

loss account.

The accounts of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these

cases are dealt with as a movement in exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group's contributions to retirement benefit schemes are
expensed as incurred and where appropriate, are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the year in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as the
primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary

reporting format.
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7 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS coumueo 5 B T EE ¢

1.

Principal accounting policies (conminuep)

(p)

(q)

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets, intangible assets,
inventories, receivables and operating cash, and mainly exclude
investments securities and tax recoverable. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation
and borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed

assets (note 13).

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on
the country in which the customer is located. Total assets and capital

expenditure are based on where the assets are located.

Dividends

In accordance with the revised SSAP 9, the Group no longer
recognises dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet
date as a liability at the balance sheet date. This change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively so that the
comparatives presented have been restated to conform to the

changed policy.

As detailed in Note 20, this change has resulted in an increase in
opening retained earnings at 1st April 2001 by HK$53,535,000 (1st
April 2000: HK$54,210,000) which is the reversal of the provision
for 2001 (2000) proposed final dividend previously recorded as a
liability as at 31st March 2001 (31st March 2000) although not

declared until after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

1. Principal accounting policies (continuep)

(r)

(s)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or

the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as

a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within

the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with

the current year’s presentation.
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“ " NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conrmueny B5 B M 5E o)

2. Revenues, turnover and segment information 2. W EEERIEER
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of a REBFEXB AN ELROM MMz TE RIL
wide range of brand name cosmetic products and the provision of beauty B RIEHEZAMEEHORS - FARRE 2 W=
and health club services. Revenues recognised during the year are UM
as follows:
Group
rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Turnover EER
Retail and wholesale TERBE 1,385,845 1,351,213
Beauty and health club services EBRRBEEHORB 151,566 88,156
1,537,411 1,439,369
Other revenues Hthzs
Interest income FEWA 20,394 38,161
Slide display rental income 2R R R3S WA 6,934 5,261
Sundry income HIEBA 804 728
28,132 44,150
1,565,543 1,483,519
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2. Revenues, turnover and segment information 2.
(CONTINUED)

W EXERDEER @

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) EBDBBELR - B2 HEH
Beauty and
health club
services
Retail and E3053 2002
wholesale BEHL Total
TERMHE AR 3% Fokc|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T AT T BB
Turnover =E -] 1,385,845 151,566 1,537,411
Results 4
Segment results HEREE 29,889 (10,814) 19,075
Interest income 2B A 16,829 3,565 20,394
Interest expenses S (157) (132) (289)
Restructuring costs and HEMBAFZ
provisions for debts of BHARAR
several subsidiaries REERH - (64,877) (64,877)
Store closure costs JEHRIEAE A (10,665) - (10,665)
Impairment of fixed assets of an BF 57 —sasa.comZ
e-commerce business — sasa.com EEEERE (8,915) - (8,915)
Deficit on revaluation of T REFZEREE
leasehold land and buildings (18,919) - (18,919)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBAIEF (BE) 8,062 (72,258) (64,196)
Taxation BIE (9,652)
Loss after taxation BB faEE (73,848)
Minority interests DER R 2,673
Loss attributable to shareholders e (71,175)
Segment assets SHEE 1,023,151 67,711 1,090,862
Investment securities and REESREHHE
tax recoverable 3,290
Total assets EEAE 1,094,152
Segment liabilities Pk =R 116,879 163,763 280,642
Borrowings and taxation BERBE 14,953
Total liabilities =i gk 295,595
Minority interests DERRER (6,379)
Net assets EEFE 792,178
Other information Hip& R
Capital expenditure BEARERZ 17,500 24,686 42,186
Depreciation and amortisation charges TEREHER 48,228 10,965 59,193
Provision for doubtful debts RERE 2,971 290 3,261
Provision for slow moving inventories wIEEERE 13,787 530 14,317
Write-off of fixed assets & & & E MR 1,089 - 1,089
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2. Revenues, turnover and segment information 2. WH EXBRIEER »

(CONTINUED)

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (continued) (a) FEFIWBH/RELN —EBHBER @)

Beauty and
health club
services
Retail and xR 2001
wholesale BEH L Total
TE R E BR 5 aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T BT T
Turnover e 1,351,213 88,156 1,439,369
Results ¥iE
Segment results HEEE 57,089 3,288 60,377
Interest income B WA 37,220 941 38,161
Interest expenses A8 (41) (225) (266)
Store closure costs ERBARER (13,253) - (13,253)
Impairment of goodwill EERE = (159,429) (159,429)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADE A, (B518) 81,015 (155,425) (74,410)
Taxation G| (7,746)
Loss after taxation BREL (& B 1R (82,156)
Minority interests DERRE R (2,095)
Loss attributable to shareholders IR R e (G &5 18 (84,251)
Segment assets AIWEE 1,088,772 85,623 1,174,395
Investment securities and RERHFRAEBHE
tax recoverable 1,077
Total assets BELE 1,175,472
Segment liabilities a0 =R 92,518 160,057 252,575
Borrowings and taxation BERHE 9,952
Total liabilities BELE 262,527
Minority interests DSERRER 32,181
Net assets BERE 945,126
Other information Hh &R
Capital expenditure BARMR 53,216 8,754 61,970
Depreciation and amortisation charges TEREHER 45,066 4,827 49,893
Provision for slow moving inventories mIEEERE 1,604 - 1,604
Write-off of fixed assets & E & E MR 2,101 - 2,101
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2. Revenues, turnover and segment information 2.

(CONTINUED)

(b) Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group operates in Greater China, Taiwan and South Asia.

Greater China comprises Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

South Asia comprises Thailand, Malaysia and Singapore.

HBOBHREN K - wESBEN

SENATE 58N F M E L= ER KP
EREEE RFIRDEAE -FEEBESR

55 R P R R AR AN

Greater South 2002
China Taiwan Asia Total
Rz =) | BEtE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Turnover EE 2 1,291,655 104,088 141,668 1,537,411
Results ES
Segment results HEEE 36,064 (12,606) (4,383) 19,075
Interest income FEWA 18,841 186 1,367 20,394
Interest expenses FEX (261) - (28) (289)
Restructuring costs and provisions HEMEATZ
for debts of several subsidiaries FEAKARRRRE (64,429) - (448) (64,877)
Store closure costs EHARER - (10,665) - (10,665)
Impairment of fixed assets of an BFH % —sasa.comzZ
e-commerce business — sasa.com BEEAERE (8,915) - - (8,915)
Deficit on revaluation of leasehold THREBFZEMEE
land and buildings (18,919) - - (18,919)
Loss before taxation BRELATE 18 (37,619) (23,085) (3,492) (64,196)
Segment assets SHMEE 929,886 51,029 109,947 1,090,862
Investment securities REFFREHBE
and tax recoverable 3,290
Total assets BEEHEE 1,094,152
Capital expenditure BERMHAX 15,616 4,142 22,428 42,186

BB BRI AR AR

=z

SEREEER
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2. Revenues, turnover and segment information 2.

(CONTINUED)

(b) Secondary reporting format — geographical segments (continued)

i

2

)

S

S
M

¥HERDTEER®

(b) #BABREMS - hEABER @)

Greater South 2001
China Taiwan Asia Total
PNGE= A& B IE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BEF T BT BT
Turnover EE L 1,167,412 146,408 125,549 1,439,369
Results E 4
Segment results DEEE 71,724 (16,449) 5,102 60,377
Interest income 2 WA 36,477 337 1,347 38,161
Interest expenses FIRX (181) - (85) (266)
Store closure costs ERBARER - (13,253) - (13,253)
Impairment of goodwill EERE (68,327) - (91,102) (159,429)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADEF, (E518) 39,693 (29,365) (84,738) (74,410)
Segment Assets PEEE 997,220 79,410 97,765 1,174,395
Investment securities and REZRSFRFEHBE
tax recoverable 1,077
Total assets BEEHEE 1,175,472
Capital expenditure BEARMHAX 50,649 5,142 6,179 61,970
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3. Operating profit

=
AAl

il
Bk
H

Group
AEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Operating profit is stated after crediting RERAETAR
and charging the following: MERT5IER
Crediting A
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEERN 390 491
Write back of provision for doubtful debts B0l R AR - 125
Charging kR
Amortisation of intangible assets IR 2,401 1,685
Auditors’ remuneration ZER I & 1,769 1,375
Depreciation of fixed assets held under REMERNFEZ
finance leases EEEENE 51 164
Depreciation of owned fixed assets BEETEENE 56,741 48,044
Net exchange loss BN B EFE 2,381 2,691
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REFZEERNES
and buildings 165,893 137,825
Provision for doubtful debts R 3,261 -
Provision for slow moving inventories TBIHTE BB 14,317 1,604
Retirement benefit costs RRE XM 11,655 7,781
Write-off of fixed assets & & E MR 1,089 2,101
SHERBRERAT —TT— —TT-FEH
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4. Finance costs 4. BIRER

Group

rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Interest on bank overdrafts RITBEZ 2 FI L 112 80

Interest on bank loans not wholly 2ETHEREFAEE

repayable within five years RITERZFE 157 -
Interest on finance leases BMEBRNZFE 20 186
289 266

5 Restructuring costs and provisions for debts of 5. EEMBLAR ZEARAE

several subsidiaries R RERBE

Restructuring costs and provisions for debts are incurred in connection BFHAKRARRERED AW KLisbeth Enterprises
with the restructuring of the beauty and health club operations of Lisbeth Limited R EFB R A ERARBEF L2 EBHEE
Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries and the outstanding amounts BAREBEALTAR B AR EEIRE 2 RERKE
that might not be recoverable from the relevant parties respectively (refer (FRMIEE17 - 26(c)F%31) °

to details in notes 17, 26(c) and 31).

Group
TEH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Restructuring costs BARK
Write-off of fixed assets & E & E MR 3,109 -
Severence payments and others EHMEREAM 2,771 =
Provisions for debts RIREHE
Provision for amounts due from ex-directors KB ARES R
of subsidiaries and their related company HEBEARFIE 2 B&E (KE17)
(note 17) 26,816 -
Provision for receivables from minority FE UG BT B8 X B D BUAR SR B 2 B A
shareholders of subsidiaries (note 26(c)) (KtEE26(0) 32,181 -

64,877 =
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6. Store closure costs 6. [EHHEARER
Store closure costs represent expenses incurred in connection with the EFRERMERERESE A EEMEMEE B 5
closure of several stores in Taiwan. Details are as follows: HEnR
Group
REE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Write-off of fixed assets [ 7E & 2 MR 1,249 4,719
Write-off of trademarks AR 9 B 1,220 -
Provision for slow moving inventories T ERE 4,021 2,258
Costs in relation to early termination of RARIETROREME K 2 10 E A
leases and other contracts 2,949 4,092
Redundancy costs and others fRIEE K EHA 1,226 2,184
10,665 13,253
7. Taxation 7. ®IE
(a) The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss () EHEEBRRRAMKRIBESHNAT:
account represents:
Group
REE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH
Current REE 8,660 7,181
Over provision in previous years FEBBEEE - (3,949)
Overseas taxation BN IE
Current REE 3,338 6,163
(Over)/under provision in previous years AF (BF) BETR (698) 1,641
Deferred taxation (note 23(a)) EIERTE (MTEE23(a)) (1,648) (3,290)
9,652 7,746

SHEREMAERAT —TT— —TT_F5H



7. Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation for the year has not been (recognised)/provided

in respect of the following:

AEER (BR) / BRIELERES:

Group

REH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Accelerated depreciation allowances R E R FH R 133 (9,152)
Tax losses BIEEE (5,324) (8,318)
Other timing differences H By = 349 (245)
(4,842) (17,715)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (2001:
16%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits have been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Tax recoverable in the consolidated balance sheet represents the
amount of provisional tax paid less the amount of Hong Kong profits

tax and overseas tax provided for the current and previous years.

Taxation payable in the consolidated balance sheet represents the
provision for Hong Kong profits tax and overseas tax less the amount

of provisional tax paid for the current and previous years.

8. Loss attributable to shareholders

The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the

Company to the extent of profit of HK$25,027,000 (2001: profit of
HK$82,857,000).
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R B M

b=11]2
il

9. Dividends 9. KE
Company
AN

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT

Interim, paid — 1.0 HK cents BRF RS — AL .0
(2001: 1.0 HK cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZT—F:1.08) 13,234 13,097

Final, proposed — 4.0 HK cents RRARHR S — BREARL.0E L
(2001: 4.0 HK cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZT—F:4.08) 50,894 53,535
64,128 66,632

Notes B & -

10.

(a)

The previously recorded final dividends proposed and declared after the
balance sheet date but accrued in the accounts for the year ended 31st March
2000 and 2001 were HK$54,210,000 and HK$53,535,000 respectively. Under
the Group’s new accounting policy as described in Note 1(q), these have
been written back against opening reserves as at 1st April 2000 and 2001 in
Note 20 and are now charged in the period in which they were proposed.

At a meeting held on 19th July 2002 the directors declared a final dividend
of 4.0 HK cents per ordinary share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as
a dividend payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March 2003.

Loss per share — Basic

(a)

(b)

The calculation of basic loss per ordinary share is based on the
Group's loss attributable to shareholders of HK$71,175,000 (2001:
HK$84,251,000 (restated)).

The basic loss per ordinary share is based on the weighted average
of 1,330,793,393 (2001: 1,348,769,893) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented as there is no potential

dilutive ordinary share during the year.

(a)

BAREEHEABENREZRBARS S 7
/54,210,000 7T ]2 53,535,000 7T - B It E /R 87
HE_TZZTFR_ZTT—F=-A=+—HIFEEB
AEAR-RBEAER 2 MG EE (RHE1(q)
EYHEN_TTTER_ZET-—FHA—HZHY
R EE (RE20) TEMREHERERS ZH
EEE

RZFF_FLATNBBRTZER L EFEMKE
RIS B LB 0B L - I HERRAR B 3 A AR
BHSMERMRE ERRBE—TZ=F=A=+—
AR FESIERFE 2K

10.BREBE-EX

(a)

TERCEANEBIREAEERE
FEEEIE71,175,0008 L (ZEF —4:
84,251,000/ 7T (EFHR) ) st Ee

BREBRZERNEEDERAFEEE
B Z hn#EF19201,330,793,393 (T —

£:1,348,769,893) R L@ At E

MR FE RIS TR Y B2
kg Sy g

SHBERERARAR —TT

it
<(

SRR FER
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"7 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS comuen & B 5

(%)

MNEEZRSREBAEZHE

11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments EEME

(a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of the
Company during the year are as follows:

REAENTARREEMSERNT:

Group

rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Fees ik 705 804

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EAREe FEEEA HER

allowances and benefits in kind (note) REWH &= (FIaE) 8,526 9,249
Directors’ pension BEEZRKE 403 451
9,634 10,504
Benefit from share options exercised TR 2 A& - 878

Directors' fees of HK$705,000 (2001: HK$804,000) were paid to
independent non-executive directors.

The emoluments of the directors fell within the following bands:

RFARRABIFQTES 2N HREE
705,000 7T (ZFZ —F:804,000% L) °

NET5IMe BEZ EEAMDT

Number of directors

Emoluments bands EEAY

B & %5 = 2002 2001

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 5 7

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 (note) (Fff7E) 1 1

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 1

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 1 1
8 10

Note:

The amount includes 3,333,328 shares issued at par to an ex-director in lieu

of cash remuneration (note 11(c)(ii)(1)).

No compensation for loss of office has been paid to the directors
for the year ended 31st March 2002 and 2001.
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11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 11.EERSREEAEZHME @

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include three directors (2001: three) whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

(b) AfuBBHAL

RAEERUGSHFMALR =L (ZFTF—
F=f) RARAEZ - REFEEMEERE
REBP-MeA TR (ZTT—F M) AR

emoluments payable to the remaining two (2001: two) individuals FAMEBEFTNT:
during the year are as follows:
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EXRF& FREEM A=A
allowances and benefits in kinds REWF= 2,217 4,276
Pension contributions RIKE G 79 67
2,296 4,343

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

NFTIHEHEZEEAZMT:

Number of individuals

Emoluments bands AE

HesE 2002 2001

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 1

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 - 1
2 2

R IERBRAR —

A

B/ RBEER
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11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(CONTINUED)
(c) An ex-director’s service agreement (“Service Agreement”)

(i) A Service Agreement was entered between the Company and
an ex-director on 2nd August 1999 and it was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting on 14th September 1999. Pursuant to the terms set
out in the Service Agreement, the ex-director was entitled to

the following:
(1) Remuneration shares

9,000,000 shares of the Company issued to the ex-director
at par, credited as fully paid, in lieu of cash remuneration

during the term of appointment.
(2) Share Option A

The ex-director was granted an option to subscribe in
aggregate up to 27,513,587 shares of the Company at a
price of HK$0.928 per share. 764,266 shares were vested
to the ex-director on a monthly basis over three years.
The exercise period for Share Option A is between 14th

September 1999 to 2nd February 2007.
(3) Share Option B

The ex-director was granted a right to subscribe in
aggregate up to an amount of HK$7,800,000 for the
Company’s shares at a price of HK$0.928 per share,
equivalent to 8,405,172 shares. The Share Option B had
been exercised during the year ended 31st March 2000.
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(i)

ARBE—AEER-—NANFNRZ
R — I REHE Mz BHEER
ANFNATHBZAARBREFIAE
R AR AL - KX BRTS 1 B 155K A T E
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B < B0

RARIRZAESEFHNUEE
(B#UR) 3£179,000,000% 2 IR D
FRAEZUARBEESHE

FEREA

ZANESAERARAK T A H
27,513,587 A Bl {0 2 B A - 3R
EEAEMR0.928BT-ZANESE
RATI15764,266/% RHI=F B
AZTTESB—ANNEN A +ME
E_TRLFE AR

R #EB

ZAIERE N AR TIAER0.928%8

FEARIRGS,405,172/% 2%
#/37,800,00078 7T AR EB B RO B
ETTETHFE=A=F+—HILFE
AfTfE -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(CONTINUED)

(c) An ex-director’s service agreement (“Service Agreement”)

(continued)

(i) During the year and pursuant to the terms of the Service

Agreement:

(1) 3,333,328 remuneration shares were issued to the ex-
director at par, the aggregate market value amounted to
HK$2,272,080 at the dates of issues (note to 11(a) and
19(a));

(2) 9,171,192 share options under Share Option A had been
granted to the ex-director. None were exercised during

the year.

(iii) Subsequent to the year end, a further 1,166,672 remuneration
shares had been issued and 3,821,341 share options had been

granted to the ex-director under Share Option A.
12.Retirement benefit scheme

Prior to 1st December 2000, the Group, with exception to certain
subsidiaries, operated a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme"”) for its employees in Hong Kong. The Scheme is
administered by independent trustees. Under the Scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 4% to 5% of their monthly salaries, while the
employer’s contributions are calculated at a range of 4% to 7% of
employee’s monthly salaries. The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s contributions after 10 years of completed service, or at a
reduced scale after completion of three to nine years’ service. The
forfeited contributions are to be used to reduce the employer’s

contributions.

AY
()
R/

b=11]2

MN.ESKREREBAEZHNE @

(0 —fAESzRBEHRE (TREHBRD @0

(i) F AR X BRI 5 38 6K

(1) ANRBAEEZET3,333,328M <K
NFZAMES ZERMHNSEITH
ZHATI{EA2,272,0808 7T (M

11(a) % 19(a)) :

2 KEBREA  ZAEZTEET
9,171,192 B R #E - 2 SR ENF
RN AT E

(i) F#HEAR RNARMKEREANEBERT
1,166,672MeRHOERFTZAES
3,821,341 88 x4

12. BRRE5H 3

RZZZTF+_A—HUA AEE (RLEHBEL
ARSI REERREERTAEHRARESEE (2
&) RE E B E AT R - RZAE EETE
RAFEDZEERMR MEFHKANREE A E
BOZNZELHE - BERREB & ATEFS
Z B REM TR M =Z NV B SRR L Bl ET
B ORI 2 BERHS B AR E AR = R

DHERERAERRR 2T —TT_FFR
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" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (commue 5 B

12.Retirement benefit scheme (conTinueD)

Prior to 1st December 2000, certain subsidiaries of the Group have,
however, made provision for long service payments at 70% of the total
theoretical long service payments to employees entitling to such
payments upon retirement or termination of employment calculated by
reference to the length of service and monthly salary in accordance with

prevailing employment laws.

Since 1st December 2000, the Group in Hong Kong elected to contribute
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the employer
and employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s monthly
salaries (capped at HK$20,000). The employee can also choose to
contribute at rate specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme whereby the
employer’s contribution is equal to the employee’s contribution.
Contributions from the employer equivalent to the contribution as
specified at the rules of the MPF Scheme are 100% vested as soon as
they are paid to the relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from
the mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee
reaches the retirement age of 65 subject to a few exceptions. As to the
employer’s contribution in excess of the portion vested in the MPF Scheme
the employees are entitled to 100% of it after 10 years of completed
service or at a reduced scale after completion of three to nine years’
service. The forfeited contributions are to be used to reduce the

employer’s contribution.

The retirement benefit schemes for staff of the Group in other countries

follow the local statutory requirements of the respective countries.
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12.Retirement benefit scheme (continuep) 12. RRE5 8 @)
During the year, the Group's retirement benefit schemes contributions FR AEBZBARSETEIFFTINT

are as follows:

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Gross employer’s contributions EEHEFER 12,677 9,348
Less: Forfeited contributions utilised B ORI 2 iR ER F A
to reduce employer’s contributions HHEERFE
for the year 2B (1,022) (1,567)
Net employer’s contributions charged to RErE B RN
the consolidated profit and loss account ZEEHEFFE 11,655 7,781

SHRRERERAT —TT—/—TT-FER
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13.Fixed assets — Group 13.BIEEE - A&E

Leasehold Leasehold Equipment, Machinery

land and  improve-  furniture  and club

buildings ments and fixtures equipment Motor Motor
HELH HENE RBEEM BFEM  vehicles boat Total
kigF £ R%&E PET] "B i @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETTL BETTL BETT BETT BETTL BETTL

Cost or valuation RESEE

At 1st April 2001 RZZZ-4MA—-A 55,190 154,348 116,781 29,484 6,163 4,630 366,596
Exchange adjustments BERE - (578) (369) 64 (20) - (903)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR 4,261 - 4,188 - 678 - 9,127
Additions NE = 15,523 18,101 7,760 802 - 42,186
Revaluation Bff (25,941) - - - - - (25,941)
Write-off W = (12,884) (14,808) (14,837) (11) - (42,540)
Disposals HE = = (231) (44) (2,660) = (2,935)
At 31st March 2002 R=BZ-£=HA=t+-H 33,510 156,409 123,662 22,427 4,952 4,630 345,590

Accumulated depreciation ~ REF#E

At 1st April 2001 RZZZ-4MA—-A 3,851 108,217 72,477 21,425 3,646 3,781 213,397

Exchange adjustments BERE - (358) (293) 59 (16) - (608)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 1,092 - 1,090 - 569 = 2,751

Charge for the year KEERE 2,079 26,805 22,275 3,764 1,020 849 56,792

Impairment charges (note (f))  #&8E5E () - - 8,915 - - - 8,915

Revaluation L (7,022) - - - - - (7,022)
Write-off i - (10,746) (12,308) (13,541) (10) - (36,605)
Disposals HE - - (121) (10) (2,293) - (2,424)
At 31st March 2002 RZEZ-F=A=+-H - 123,918 92,035 11,697 2,916 4,630 235,196

Net book value FHFE

At 31st March 2002 R-BE-5=fA=+-H 33,510 32,491 31,627 10,730 2,036 - 110,394

At 31st March 2001 I = 51,339 46,131 44,304 8,059 2,517 849 153,199
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13.Fixed assets — Group (CONTINUED)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2002 of the above

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) E\'E E IZHE\ (&)

1B3.EEEE-XA&EH®

NEEER T _F=A=+—BRREXMKE

assets is as follows: DT :
Leasehold  Leasehold Equipment,  Machinery
land and improve-  furniture and club
buildings ments and fixtures equipment Motor Motor
HELH HENE  REHR BEM vehicles boat Total
RETF %5 R%EE Rk fE RE bt st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BB BETT BETT BETT
At cost ZRE = 156,409 123,662 22,427 4,952 4,630 312,080
At 2002 valuation R-ZT-FifF 33,510 = = = = - 33,510
33,510 156,409 123,662 22,427 4,952 4,630 345,590

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong

and held under medium term leases between 10 to 50 years.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31st
March 2002 on the basis of their open market value by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors. The deficit arising on revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings amounted to HK$18,919,000 is charged to the

consolidated profit and loss account.

The carrying amount of land and buildings would have been
HK$72,805,000 (2001: HK$72,814,000) had they been stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation.

At 31st March 2002, cost of machinery and club equipment includes
an amount of HK$249,000 (2001: HK$126,000) in respect of assets
under finance leases and the related accumulated depreciation

amounts to HK$125,000 (2001: HK$9,000).

FAEBURER 2HEL U RETTIZ10E50
FRPRNFR-

ARBEZHELHREFERBYZEEEM
HERTHR -_ZTZ_F=A=+—HRERAHAM
BEEESH-ZEMRZER18,919,0008 T B
R B BEERR IR

i i RIBFRRERTEINR EEEERSA
72,805,000 0 (ZZTZT—472,814,000/%

L)

R-TT_F=A=+—RH &mBENRLEZ
JREEE249,000% L (ZFF—4:126,000
BIL) UREBNBEZEE MABRINE
73125,0008 7T (ZTZ—4:9,00087T) °

BHEBERERAR —TF

SRR FER



2" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conrmueor H B

13.Fixed assets — Group (CONTINUED)

(e) At 31st March 2002, the net book value of fixed assets pledged as
security for the Group's bank loan and banking facilities amounted

to HK$16,036,000 (2001: HK$13,324,000).
(f)  Impairment charges represent full provision for computer equipment

and software costs in relation to an e-commerce business of Sa Sa

dot Com Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

14.Subsidiaries

%\
AL (&)

(f)

ERBETEEZREFEA6,036,0007
T (ZZZ—%:13,324,000%7T) °

FEREENRRME—E AR Sa Sa dot Com
LimitedZz BT EM s EISERREH2H
FTiEid 2 Bt

14. B A 7]

Company
RAF
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRG R AE 390 390
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b)) FEU BT B A 7] 2 5738 (FT#E(b)) 701,499 787,069
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note (b)) FEAF BT 8 A R 2 5738 (FfT #E(b)) (1,484) (1,481)
700,405 785,978

(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note

33 to the accounts.

(b) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed repayment term.
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15.Intangible assets

\\\
i
it

15. E

103

Group
rEE
Goodwill Trademark Total
GEES 5] Fok |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT BEET T
At 1st April 2000 RZZEEZTFMNA—H - 3,410 3,410
Exchange adjustments RERE - (130) (130)
Amortisation By - (1,685) (1,685)
At 31st March 2001 and RZEE—F=fA=+—H
1st April 2001 r—ZEZT—FMA—H - 1,595 1,595
Exchange adjustments HERE = (87) (87)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WP A R 28,310 - 28,310
Amortisation By (2,123) (278) (2,401)
Write-off i B = (1,230) (1,230)
At 31st March 2002 R-ZBE-_F=F=+—H 26,187 - 26,187
Goodwill Trademark
GEES 5]
HK$'000 HK$'000
PSR T I SR TIT
At 31st March 2002 R-ZEZE-_F=A=+-—H
Cost AR 28,310 5,986
Accumulated amortisation ESE 1] (2,123) (5,986)
Net book value IREDFE 26,187 =
At 31st March 2001 R-ZZEE—F=A=+—H
Cost AR - 6,103
Accumulated amortisation EGE 3] = (4,508)
Net book value BREFE - 1,595
ERERARAT —TF—/ —ET_54H




Y NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmuen 8% BB 5E )

16. FEURBRFX

16.Trade receivable
Majority of the Group's turnover are cash or credit card sales. The ageing REBEXFFERBR S EABHE YRR
analysis of trade receivable is as follows: 2RI :
Group
AEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Within 1 month REREA 16,741 10,438
1 - 3 months 1—318A 4,632 415
Over 3 months HiB31E A 2,411 325
23,784 11,178

17.0ther receivables, deposits and prepayments 17. Rt B IE - R E R A FRIB
Hip U EBE RN B AR A EEREE@E

Included in other receivables are amounts due from ex-directors of a
ARZKIH

subsidiary and their related company.
Group
rEE
2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T SR FIT

Gross amount FEk 26,816 22,661
Less: Provision R B 26,816 =
Net amount R - 22,661
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17.0ther receivables, deposits and prepayments

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

Particulars of these amounts are as follows:

EF@ERMT

Name of borrower
fERA

Connected parties
HEATL

Position
Bz

Terms
15K

—  Duration and repayment terms
fE TR E OB 3R 16K

— Interest rate on or before
31st August 2001
RZZEZ—FN\A
=+—B5®ZAf&x

- Interest rate on or after
1st September 2001
R-ZZEZT—FNHA—H
o2 1B R

- Security
ER

Balance (including interest receivable)

HEE (BIEERAR)

- At 31st March 2002
RZTT-_F=A=+—H

- At 31st March 2001
RZZET—F=A=+—H

Maximum balance outstanding
during the year
REXNKZ=RE

Accrued interest
SEE Rl
- At 31st March 2002
R-ZET-—F=A=+—H
- At 31st March 2001
RZZTZT—F=A=+—H

Edwin John Phillips
(Note)
(Hizz)

Edwin John Phillips

Ex-director of a subsidiary

MBARNES

On or before 31st
August 2001
RZZEZT—FN\A
=+—B%2ZHA
8.5% per annum

F£58.5 E

Prime lending rate +
3% per annum
REBENE+IEFR

Unsecured

EER

HK$3,123,000
3,123,000 T
HK$498,000
498,000 T

HK$3,123,000

3,123,000/ 7T

HK$1,603,000
1,603,000/
Nil

1

b=11]2
il

Barry Richard Wain
(Note)
(Ktat)

Barry Richard Wain

Ex-director of a subsidiary
MEBARIRES

On or before 31st
August 2001
RZZEZE—FN\A
=+—B%ZA
8.5% per annum

F£58.5E

Prime lending rate +
3% per annum
REBENEI3EFR

Unsecured
KR

HK$1,603,000
1,603,000 7T
HK$73,000
73,0005 7T

HK$1,603,000

1,603,000/ 7T

HK$1,530,000
1,530,000/ 7T
Nil
E:d

17. Hb EIRRIE R & R AN TR ()

Platinum Corporation
(Note)
(Hiz#)

Edwin John Phillips &
Barry Richard Wain

Ex-directors of a subsidiary
MEBARIRES

On or before 31st
August 2001
RZZEZT—F/\A
=+—B%ZA
Interest free

BE

Interest free

2R

Unsecured
KR

HK$22,090,000
22,090,000 7T
HK$22,090,000
22,090,000 7T

HK$22,090,000

22,090,0007& 7T

Nil

Nil

SYRRERERAT —TT—/-TT
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17.0ther receivables, deposits and prepayments

(CONTINUED)

Note:

The amount due from Platinum Corporation represents historical
advances made by Lisbeth Enterprises Limited (“Lisbeth”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, prior to the Group’s completion of

its investment in Lisbeth on 31st August 2000.

To secure repayment of the advances made to Platinum Corporation,
Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain, each of Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain signed two
promissory notes (“the Promissory Notes”) on 31st August 2000 in the
aggregate amount of HK$12,024,573 and HK$12,014,472 respectively
in favour of Lisbeth. Of the total loan balances, HK$1,168,683 is interest-
bearing at 8.5% per annum. The remaining loan balances are interest
free. All the loans are unsecured and are repayable upon the earlier of
(i) one year from 31st August 2000 or (ii) date of completion of the first
Option Agreement. In the event that the amount due under the
Promissory Notes are not paid in full when due, Lisbeth is entitled to
charge interest on such unpaid amount (to the extent permitted by
applicable law) for the period from the date such amount was due until
such amount shall have been paid in full at such interest rate per annum
as is equal to 3% per annum over the prime lending rate quoted from
time to time by The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("Default Interest Charges”). Both Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain defaulted
in payment of the Promissory Notes when they were due on 31st August
2001. As a result of the default in payment by Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain,
Default Interest Charges on the Promissory Notes were raised against

Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain with effect from 1st September 2001.

As the directors of the Company are uncertain about the ultimate
recoverability of the above amounts, full provision for the outstanding
amounts has been made in the Group's financial statements for the year

ended 31st March 2002.
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17. B EWCGRUR - R E R AN FUH )

Hfat -
Platinum Corporation i A A A2 2 EH B A A
Lisbeth Enterprises Limited ( [Lisbeth|) Z RFK T3
SER-TTZF/\A=+—B T Lishethz1&
& A Lisbeth[APlatinum CorporationfZ itz @7
B]Ke

#AHERPlatinum Corporation * Phillips#t4 & Wain %t
EEELRER R_ZBETEN[=1+—8"
Phillips % 4 R Wain 4 £ % B bALisbeth A% m A %7
HEF/12,024,5737 87T 512,014,472 T 2 A A
B ([ANER]) EANEEED HF1,168,683%
TERERERS SEEN S MR T 2 ERAE#A
BoFTEERHRERR WAENTREZ B
REE:()E-TTTEN\A=+— ARt —F% %
(iNF—EREREHH 2 TR B - WMERNETZR
SR BIEAFE RS R A 2 EUB - BllLisbeth A#ERE Hit
AT SBREFIRCABEREDHER BR) - BHH
SRINPzEREZHMBERIEZHRE REE LS
EZRTEBRRATEMRZ ZEBEFEMIET
BFIE (TRFRZFE]) oPhillips 5t & & Wain 5t £
HARERZZZ—FNA=T—HENEANEES
HAFE 1+ 2 FRI8 - (R Phillips 56 4 R Wain 5E 4 R 8L B
TENRBEZEE AtE 22— 1A —BER
A EMPhillips 54 R Wain 5 £ WEUR R 5%
2.

H?

HRARARESEREEERKETIRE EilsR
TE-—F=A=+—HItHF
EZM BRI LR RS2 SRS



18.Trade and bills payables

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

18. BV R R RiE

BNEFRREBRZREDTOT

Group

rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Within 1 month 1MEAR 49,622 22,989
1 - 3 months 1 — 3184 9,365 30,509
Over 3 months HBiAE3ME A 3,756 6,628
62,743 60,126

19.Share capital

19. IR

Company - Authorised

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

RAR —EE

EREE0IBTZEER
No. of shares HK$'000
RDEE BETT
At 31st March 2001 and 2002 RZZZT—FR-TT-F
=A=+—H 8,000,000,000 800,000

SHBERERARAR —TT

SEREEER

107



19.Share capital (continuep)

19. RZ ()

Company - Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AAR -EBRTRARE
SREEIEBIZEBR

Note No. of shares HK$'000
B = BRHEE BT T
At 1st April 2000 RZZEEZFMNA—H 1,356,599,836 135,660
Issuance of shares BT 4,453,336 445
Repurchase of shares i [ iR 17 (23,850,000) (2,385)
At 31st March 2001 and R oFE—FE=H=1—H
1st April 2001 R=ZEE-FMA—H 1,337,203,172 133,720
Issuance of shares BEITRD (@) & (b) 6,573,328 657
Repurchase of shares BB 1D (0 (25,444,000) (2,544)
At 31st March 2002 RZEE-_F=A=+—H 1,318,332,500 131,833
(a) During the year, a total of 3,333,328 ordinary shares were issued (a) RAFER RAREBEE—FIEEE 2 R
at par in lieu of cash remuneration (note 11(c)(ii)(1)) to an ex-director HIERATEE1TH3,333,328 L @BR F %Al
pursuant to the terms of his Service Agreement. Subsequent to the EEURBHESME (BIF11QG)(1)) ~F4E
year end, 1,166,672 shares were further issued to the ex-director BEERFERTIEBH AL BE1771,166,672
up to the date of this report. BRfD T &R EE
(b) During the year, 3,240,000 share options were exercised by an (b) RERN —(IAIEER—EBRETEERITE
ex-director in accordance with the terms of a share option scheme. 3,240,000 iR &
(c) Repurchase of shares (c) EERH

During the year, the Company repurchased 25,444,000 of its own
shares in the open market through the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, all of which have been duly cancelled. The total
purchase price of the shares was HK$15,618,863 with the maximum
and minimum prices paid for each share being HK$0.78 and HK$0.51

respectively.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002

RERN DEIEBEEHAE X FNARTSHE
[B125,444,000 A 5 i fn Z S0 B 2865
tHoCEZ S 2 BHER15,618,8638TT"
RaERKEED A RER0.78ELK0.51

BT



19.Share capital (continuep)

(c)

Repurchase of shares (continued)

Subsequent to the year end, the Company repurchased 47,138,000
of its own shares in the open market through the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, all of which have been duly cancelled. The
total purchase price of the shares was HK$36,213,232 with the
maximum and minimum prices paid for each share being HK$0.80

and HK$0.66 respectively.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 22nd May 1997
("the Scheme"), the board of directors is authorised to grant options
to directors and eligible employees of the Company or its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at prices to be determined
by the board in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The
movements in the number of share options under the Scheme during

the year are as follows:

%5

3
=)

19. IR (4

() MEERM (5

RELRE RABBEBHAR SN AT
5iEE47,138,000R A& B ZERHE R
EREEH - MR E i 2 8B 836,213,232
B &R=BERKEES A AFR0.80B TR
0.6635 7T °

(d) FERHERHE

B—NANEERA =+ - BRH 2 ERESE
EFeAREBRETARAREMBARZE
ERFEERZRE WREZEIEIRES
GREZERRBEDRIRG - F N BARE S
Z BT

Number of share options granted
REBREHE

Under Service

Agreement

with an

Under share ex-director

option scheme REHE—(UAES

RIEERE S 2 R =

(note 11(c))

(BfFEE11(c)

As at 1st April 2001 RZZEE—FMHA—H 19,096,331 14,521,054

Add: share options granted during the year m:FRRH 2z BRE 588,235 9,171,192

Less: share options exercised during the year il : FR{T{E 2z Bk AE (3,240,000) -

Less: share options cancelled during the year 5 : & AL sE 2 BB #E (3,871,940) =

As at 31st March 2002 R-ZEZE_F=H=+—H 12,572,626 23,692,246
SPBRERERAT —TT—/ —TT-GER
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19.Share capital (continuep) 19. B7Z ()
(d) Share Option Scheme (continued) (d) BREE @
On 4th June 2001, the Company granted to an employee share RZZEZE—F A ANA ARFGTELIRE
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 588,235 shares in the i - AR B AR0.68 B L RE A #£588,235 2 2
Company at a price of HK$0.68 per share. During the year, ARD - RERN ARB —fLAEETE
3,240,000 share options were exercised by an ex-director of the 3,240,000 B4 - 3,871,940 i #E Al pE =
Company and 3,871,940 share options were cancelled upon the HUST v HMBEWTH-FEE ARAGET
resignation of several employees. Subsequent to the year end, a BB T13,791,2858 R 217,391 K
further of 13,791,285 share options were granted to several EENREESNE T 2 BB M-

employees of the Company and 217,391 share options were

cancelled upon the resignation of several employees.

During the year, 9,171,192 share options were granted to an ex- RER BEARBE-BAEEMTZREE
director of the Company under the Service Agreement entered 4 BT HMEEI T NNERE-FLEE A
between the Company and the ex-director. Subsequent to the year AR BRFZAES3,821,341 B (s
end, a further of 3,821,341 share options were granted to the ex- 11(c)) °

director (note 11(c)).
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20.Reserves

BB BRI AR AR

A

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) E\'E E MTJLE (%)
20. iR
(a) Group (a) A%£EH
Capital Exchange
redemption  fluctuation
Share reserve reserve Retained
premium EXER SMERE earnings Total
R IR E G i R RA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BB BETT BB BETT
At 1st April 2000 as “TTTENA-H
previously reported WRIZ R 756,804 1,572 (19,974) 193,870 932,272
Effect of adopting e EREIR
SSAP 9 (revised) (BgaT) v 58 - - - 54,210 54,210
At 1st April 2000 as restated “TETFWMA—HLES 756,804 1,572 (19,974) 248,080 986,482
Exercise of share options rd-te 888 - - - 888
Repurchase of own shares BEA RO (21,032) 2,385 - (2,385) (21,032)
Goodwill eliminated [k 36 - = = (159,429) (159,429)
Write-off of goodwill impaired NEREEREMER
during the year (note 1(f)) (FizE1(F) - - - 159,429 159,429
Exchange differences BMEZESE - - (3,374) - (3,374)
Loss for the year as restated AEEBREES] - - - (84,251) (84,251)
1999/2000 Final dividend paid —NWAN/—BEREE
ERAHRE = = = (53,885) (53,885)
2000/2001 Interim dividend paid ~ —ZZ2L/-TT—4FE
BT HRE = = = (13,422) (13,422)
At 31st March 2001 R-ZFZE—F=A=+—-H 736,660 3,957 (23,348) 94,137 811,406
Representing: RN :
Reserves i 757,871
Proposed dividend R 2 53,535
At 31st March 2001 R-ZE—-F=R=+—H 811,406

e— /BT _FER



20.Reserves (CONTINUED)

(a) G roup (continued)

20. & )

(a) &~&EE#m

Capital Exchange
redemption  fluctuation
Share reserve reserve Accumulated
premium BEAERE SMERD losses Total
R1EE it 1] R EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1st April 2001 —ZT-FWA-R
as previously reported AT 2] 736,660 3,957 (23,348) 40,602 757,871
Effect of adopting RV G ERIE 95
SSAP 9 (revised) (BB 2 %8 = = = 53,535 53,535

At 1st April 2001 as restated “TT-FNA-ALES 736,660 3,957 (23,348) 94,137 811,406
Exercise of share options ARERE 1,775 - - - 1,775
Repurchase of own shares FEEA R (13,075) 2,544 - (2,544) (13,075)
Exchange differences BREZES - - (1,815) - (1,815)
Loss for the year KEEBE = = = (71,175) (71,175)
2000/2001 Final dividend paid —Z2TT/-TTEF

ERAHRE = = - (53,537) (53,537)
2001/2002 Interim dividend paid ~ =TT~ /-ZT 4§

BIRTHRE = = = (13,234) (13,234)
At 31st March 2002 R-ZEE-F=A=1+—-H 725,360 6,501 (25,163) (46,353) 660,345
Representing: AR
Reserves @ 609,451
Proposed dividend FORAR S 50,894
At 31st March 2002 R-ZE-F=A=1+-H 660,345
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmuen) ik B MTJLE ()
20.Reserves (CONTINUED) 20. f&fE o
(b) Company (b) AT
Capital
Share  redemption Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
BRBEF — EREERE R Fhy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T AT T AT T BT
At 1st April 2000 —ZETFMA—H
as previously reported AT 23R 1,009,293 1,572 46,700 1,057,565
Effect of adopting SSAP 9 (revised) & & 5+ ERI5E 95
(BT 272 = = 54,210 54,210
At 1st April 2000 as restated “TETEFMA—HLES 1,009,293 1,572 100,910 1,111,775
Exercise of share options TR AR 888 - - 888
Repurchase of own shares FEEAR & iR (21,032) 2,385 (2,385) (21,032)
Profit for the year REF R - - 82,857 82,857
1999/2000 Final dividend paid —hhh/ —ETTEE
BIRA RS = = (53,885) (53,885)
2000/2001 Interim dividend paid ZTTLT/CTTHF
B RS = = (13,422) (13,422)
At 31st March 2001 R-_ET—F=A=+—H 989,149 3,957 114,075 1,107,181
Representing: AT
Reserves it 1,053,646
Proposed dividend BIR RS 53,535
At 31st March 2001 RZTE—F=F=+—H 1,107,181

DHERERAERRR 2T —TT_FFR



20. &M

20.Reserves (CoNTINUED)

(b) Company (continued) (b) ZAAT @)
Capital
Share  redemption Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
BRIDEE  ERBEERE REERF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT AT AT
At 1st April 2001 —ZZ-FWmWA—-A
as previously reported AT 2 W 989,149 3,957 60,540 1,053,646
Effect of adopting SSAP 9 (revised) — HF#AETERIEI%
(B8] 27 % - - 53,535 53,535
At 1st April 2001 as restated “TT-FMNA-BEEY 989,149 3,957 114,075 1,107,181
Exercise of share options TR AR 1,775 - - 1,775
Repurchase of own shares EARRNEGE) (13,075) 2,544 (2,544) (13,075)
Profit for the year REERF - - 25,027 25,027
2000/2001 Final dividend paid —TTT/TTKE
BIRAHR 2 = = (53,537) (53,537)
2001/2002 Interim dividend paid T /TT_FRE
BIRF HRE = = (13,234) (13,234)
At 31st March 2002 R-ZEZE_F=H=+—H 977,849 6,501 69,787 1,054,137
Representing: AR :
Reserves & 1,003,243
Proposed dividend R S 50,894
At 31st March 2002 R-ZEZE_F=A=+—H 1,054,137
Note: Hfat:
(i)  The difference of the share premium account between the Group and (i) AEEROBERERNARDROEERZ=8A

the Company represents the premium arising from merger accounting 252,489,000 I— ANt FAEERRF

of HK$252,489,000 following the Group reorganisation in preparation TR E SRR AEHGHEE 2R

for the listing of the Company in 1997. B

(i) The Company had a distributable reserve of approximately iy ARARZZZT_F=A=+—HAHIK
HK$1,047,636,000 (2001: HK$1,103,224,000 (restated)) at 31st March E##1,047,636,0008 T (Z 2T —4:
2002. 1,103,224,0007% 7T (EFFIR) ) °

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002



21

22.

.Receipts in advance

21. FAWFIE

Group
rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Total receipts in advance TEMCRIE A 141,928 143,655
Less: Amounts payable within one year B —FNEE 2 B
classified as current liabilities FlfER B B & (70,833) (70,619)
Amounts payable within the second E_FEERF (BEERMSE)
to fifth years inclusive BEZHIA 71,095 73,036
Obligations under finance leases 22 BMEMN 2 R&IE
At 31st March 2002, the Group's finance leases were repayable R-TTE-_F=A=+—H BEHLIZEXH
as follows: mF:
Group
TEH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Within one year —ER 33 248
In the second year FEF - 365
33 613
Future finance charges on finance leases BMEBRHZ REME M (3) (23)
Present value of finance leases MERNEBEZRE 30 590
The present value of finance leases is MERNBEZRBEWT:
as follows:
Within one year —FR 30 237
In the second year FF - 353
30 590
A ERARAR —TT—  —TT_FFHRK




"o NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmuery 85 BBt 5E )

23.Deferred taxation

23.

(a) Movements on the provision for deferred taxation are as follows:

IESERH

(a) EEMRFERESHINT:

Group
rEH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1st April REA—H 2,041 4,855
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B8 BT /B A ) - 496
Exchange difference MEEE = (20)
Transferred to consolidated profit BAGZEARRK (7))
and loss account (note 7(a)) (1,648) (3,290)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 393 2,041
Provided in the accounts in respect of: ERERE At TFITE B (EH B
Accelerated depreciation allowance IR E R F R 393 3,964
Tax losses BiIEEE = (2,223)
Other timing differences Hoqh B = - 300
393 2,041
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23.Deferred taxation (continuep)

Deferred taxation (assets)/liabilities for the year have not been

(recognised)/provided in respect of the following:

23.

FEFEIE ()

RAFE BRI (BE) /AELERTFIE
B {Eh (RER) /B

Group

REE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Accelerated depreciation allowance MR ERBE (7,702) (7,835)
Tax losses MIEEE (21,455) (16,131)
Other timing differences Hofh B 2= 104 (245)
(29,053) (24,211)

No provision has been made for deferred tax liability in respect of
the timing differences relating to the surplus and deficit from the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings of the Group. The
revaluation does not constitute a timing difference for taxation
purpose because the Group intends to operate these properties on

a long-term basis.

ARBEYEREGFEETHEBTFELZRE
B E M HRER R EE - N AR BRI
EZEWE BWURBBMNE EGLTHEK
fRF 22 o

AR ERERAT —TT— TE_FER



" NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conmuen 8% BB 5E )

24.Provision for long service payments

25.

24 RERB BB

Group
REH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
At 1st April nuA—H 5,078 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE B & A A - 4,925
Provision during the year FREE 907 153
Utilised during the year FRFER (1,288) -
At 31st March R=A=+—8 4,697 5,078
Bank loan - secured 25. RITRE —HER
Group
REH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —FR 156 -
In the second year BEF 166 -
In the third to fifth year BE=FZFERF 559 -
After the fifth year FRFIAE 2,652 =
3,533 -

The bank loan is secured by a leasehold land and building with a net

book value of HK$3,000,000 (2001: Nil) (note 29(c)).
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(a)

26.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 6. iREHERERMET
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to net cash inflow from (@) BUABREELERB 2R SRANFE Y
operating activities AR
Group
EE
Restated
ESPlN
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Loss before taxation BRI E R (64,196) (74,410)
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEE 2,401 1,685
Depreciation of owned fixed assets BEETEENE 56,741 48,044
Depreciation of fixed assets held under RREBAORAZECEENE
finance leases 51 164
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & EE & E 2 m A (390) (491)
Write-off of fixed assets & & E MR 5,447 6,729
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ (Em) 104,633 (47,227)
Increase in trade receivable, JRE UG BR R L fth B URRIE R 2 R
other receivables, deposits and TENRIE 2 180
prepayments (4,490) (12,306)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payable, ERERR B EMENRER
bills payable, other payables and FEEtBRZEM, CRD)
accrued charges 25,477 (6,272)
Decrease in receipts in advance TEM BB A (3,742) (4,755)
(Decrease)/increase in provision for RERESBE ORD) /58 m
long service payments (381) 153
Write-off of intangible assets B\ A EMR 1,230 -
Interest income FEWA (20,394) (38,161)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 269 80
Interest element of finance leases BMEROF S D 20 186
Provision for amounts due from FEHBARIAMES REEBE
ex-directors of subsidiaries and NEFRIEZ B
their related company 26,816 -
Provision for receivables from minority FEURHT B A Rl 2 DB R 2 B
shareholders of subsidiaries 32,181 -
Impairment of fixed assets of an EFEB —sasa.comZ EE
e-commerce business — sasa.com BERME 8,915 -
Deficit on revaluation of leasehold land T REFEMRE
and buildings 18,919 -
Impairment of goodwill [k R - 159,429
Shares granted to an ex-director in lieu BTF—mEFUREReME 2 RKH
of cash remuneration 333 283
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEB2HRESRAFH 189,840 33,131
DBHBERERAERAR —TT— ZTT_FFR

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) E’E E MTJLE (#)
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26.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Purchase of subsidiaries

On 30th June 2001, the Group reached an agreement with Shenzhen
Ebeca Enterprise Company Limited to obtain a 55% interest in
Shenzhen Sa Sa Ebeca Enterprise Limited (“Sa Sa Ebeca”), a company
established in the People’'s Republic of China, and its subsidiary
(herewith refer as the “Sa Sa Ebeca Group”). The consideration of
HK$28,374,000 was settled in cash. The proportionate fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the Sa Sa Ebeca Group at the date
of acquisition was HK$64,000. The resulting goodwill of
HK$28,310,000 has been amortised on a straight-line basis over a
period of 10 years. Sa Sa Ebeca Group contributed revenues of
HK$31,298,000 and loss of HK$5,940,000 to the Group for the
nine months period from 1st July 2001 to 31st March 2002 and its
financial position as at 31st March 2002 was HK$14,176,000.

Note: 2001 figures represent acquisition of Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and

its subsidiaries.
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(b)

BEMBLRA

R-ZZ—FRA=1TH AEEEFYITKE
EEXERARERBBLIMGEDEKILLZ
AYFFRAEREER AR (FFKEE])
FEMBAR (RBRIPDEKAEEE])

55% fR4E 28,374,000 T 2 RBUR S X o
RUEE R - R HIFE DS RBESEE] 27
PeR% B E /64,0008 7T $%1528,310,000%
T2 EBNERER T FREH N T —F
+tA-—HEZTT-_F=RA=+—HAEAH
M ISSKREEER] RAEEHR
31,298,000/ 7T 58 )2 5,940,000/8 T8 -
HHBERAR-_ZTE_E=A=+—HA
14,176,000 70

Wit —TT—FFE 2 8T 158 ALisbeth Enterprises

Limited X KB AR



26.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 26. G8RERERMT @

(CONTINUED)

(b) Purchase of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMBAR @

Group
TEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net assets/(liabilities) acquired: BAZREE,/ (B8F):
Fixed assets BT & E 6,376 15,028
Inventories FE 4,607 3,950
Trade and other receivables JRE W BR R B L At K RO 6,421 35,341
Cash and bank balances Re&RFITHER 7,187 39,452
Trade and other payables JE ST R S0 I L At FE 1 OB (5,186) (16,275)
Receipts in advance TR FRIA (2,015) (148,410)
Obligations under finance leases AE A = (1,235)
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (3,515)
Taxation payable FE R TE (1,053) (1,423)
Deferred taxation EERIE = (496)
Bank loans RITEN (7,223) (1,000)
Provision for long service payments REIRE S BE = (4,925)
Minority interests DR (9,050) 35,172
64 (48,336)
Goodwill on consolidation HEREEE 28,310 159,429
28,374 111,093
Satisfied by: A
Cash consideration HeRE 27,374 109,217
Expenses incurred in respect of WEEHE AR ER
acquisition of subsidiaries 1,000 1,876
28,374 111,093
DHERERARAR TR "RT_FFH



26.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 26. 48R AHRERMT @

(CONTINUED)

(b) Purchase of subsidiaries (continued)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year reduced the Group's net
operating cash inflow by HK$8,474,000 (2001: increased by
HK$578,000), paid HK$224,000 in respect of the net returns on
investments and servicing of finance (2001: received HK$719,000),
utilized HK$4,778,000 for investing activities (2001: utilised
HK$8,754,000), paid HK$3,689,000 in respect of financing activities
(2001: paid HK$1,647,000) and no taxation was paid (2001: paid
HK$2,254,000).

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the acquisition of subsidiaries:

BENBAR @

RERN FREZMBAR SAEE 2 &%
ZHRERANFERL8,474,0008 T (ZTFT—
42 N578,000% L) BRE R REE T H
FEX 224,000 T (ZTT—F: IR
719,000 7T) - B)fH4,778,000/8 TLIFIR A %
B(ZTT—F:3H8,754,000% ) &k
3,689,000 B LIEREEE (Z 2T —F :PH
1,647,000/ 7T) W EBMNHIE (ZTT—F:
142,254,000/ 7T) °

WEHBARZRE RRSEERLFEDN:

Group
rEE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash consideration RERE 27,374 109,217
Expenses incurred in respect of WS TS A R B
acquisition of subsidiaries 1,000 1,876
Cash consideration paid BERNBRERE 28,374 111,093
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAZHReRESEE (7,187) (35,937)
Deposit paid in previous year EFENRE (9,000) -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WEMHBARZREEREEE
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries R R 12,187 75,156
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) E\'E E IZHE\ (%)
26.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 26. MERERERMT @
(CONTINUED)
(c) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (0 FARMEZFHON
Group
A&H
Share Obligations
capital under finance
(including leases/hire
share purchase
premium) Minority contracts
B (B4 interests Bank loans ®ERL AE
RAEE) DHURRER BITER AR ZRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BETT BETT
At 1st April 2000 RZZTZTTFMNA—H 892,464 = - 764
Exchange difference BEES - 896 = =
Issue of shares, net of expenses BOROIREREFE 283 - - -
Exercise of share options TEERE 1,050 = = -
Repurchase of shares ARl (23,417) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 0= ING - (35,172) 1,000 1,235
Minority interests’ share of profits DB FE 155 R - 2,095 - -
Repayments BN - - (1,000) (1,409)
At 31st March 2001 and RZEZT—4=R=+—H
1st April 2001 k=—ZZT—-5mA—H 870,380 (32,181) - 590
Exchange difference HEES - 2 - -
Issue of shares, net of expenses BAROMGBERRFE
(note 19(a)) (Fi£19(a)) 333 - - -
Exercise of share options (note 19(b)) B RE AR (P EE19(b)) 2,099 = = =
Repurchase of shares (note 19(c)) BRI (B E19(c)) (15,619) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 0= ING - 9,050 7,223 =
Minority interests’ share of losses DERE LGS = (2,673) - -
Provision for receivables from minority LN
shareholders of subsidiaries (note 5) IR Bl (MHEEs) - 32,181 - -
Repayments B - - (3,690) (560)
At 31st March 2002 WR=—ZBE-§=H=+-H 857,193 6,379 3,533 30

BHEBERERAR —TF

SRR FER
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27.Commitments 27. & E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAFRIE
Group
REH
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Contracted but not provided for BEENERIELEE
— acquisition of subsidiaries —BENBAR - 29,374
— acquisition of fixed assets -BEETEEE 550 3,225
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRELD
— acquisition of fixed assets -BEETEEE 7,286 1,837
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) 4 & MK HEHE
As at 31st March 2002, the Group had total future aggregate REZBTZF=A=1+—H AEERETIHEZ
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases REHEMARRRI N ¢ HERERNKEENT
as follows:
Group
TEH
Restated
EETIN
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Land and buildings T REF
Within one year —FRA 142,059 121,981
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FZENF (BEEEWE) 170,859 158,697
After the fifth year ERFLE 5,600 5,461
318,518 286,139
Comparative figures have been restated as a result of the adoption HEFTERFE 4R 2B LRHEFTEENIIRe

of the revised SSAP 14.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conmmuen,

% B 3T

28.Contingent liabilities 28. HAAEE

Group

REE
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Letter of credit issued BEEITEARE 21,293 19,461
Bank guarantees in lieu of deposits RITRBUARE RS 6,805 5,176
Forward contracts committed BEEZHEAR = 743
28,098 25,380

Company

¥ NN
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Letter of credit issued BEEITEARE 20,890 19,461
Bank guarantees in lieu of deposits RITRBURE RS 3,790 3,517
24,680 22,978

29.Pledge of assets 29. EEIK T
(@) As at 31st March 2002, a bank overdraft of HK$83,000 (2001: (@) M-ZEZE-_F=A=+—H AARETHER

(b)

HK$517,000) of one of the Company’s subsidiaries is secured by a
cash deposit of HK$630,000 (2001: HK$605,000).

The assets of certain subsidiaries, including fixed assets with a net
book value of HK$13,036,000 (2001: HK$13,324,000), are subject
to fixed and floating charge to secure their general banking facilities
amounted to HK$3,636,000 (2001: HK$3,672,000), of which
HK$2,603,000 (2001: HK$2,259,000) has been utilised as at 31st
March 2002.

A leasehold land and building with a net book value of
HK$3,000,000 (2001: Nil) is pledged for a bank loan of
HK$3,533,000 (2001: Nil) (note 25).

RIER T 283,000 L (ZFTZT—4:517,000
L) RITEL IR —EHR €T 630,000
—ET—4:605,000/87T) fEEK A

]l

ReE ARz EE (B%13,036,0008 T2
BE&E(ZTT—4:13,324,000%7T) ) #%
EBEE RFEER  JAEE3,636,00058 7T
(ZZT—4:3,672,00087) RITEE HP
2,603,000 7T (ZZE—%:2,259,000%7T)
RZEE-_F=A=1+—HE®HIA-

—IEERTE%1E 3,000,000 7T 2 T E + it R &
F(ZTZT—F &) BEFHE—TE3,533,000%8 T
TEFRZEE (ZFZ—F &) (fzE25) °
SHERERARAT

=z /—EE

FiR

125
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30.Related party transactions 30, FHEALZR S
Save as those disclosed in other notes to the accounts, during the year, REERE MM EFR BB RERN AEBH
the Group undertook the following material transactions with its non- HIF2BEMBLAR RESEBBERNAEREEG
wholly owned subsidiaries in its ordinary course of business and on HETATEERHo

normal commercial terms.

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Transactions with non-wholly owned HFLEMBLARAIRS
subsidiaries:—
Sales to Lisbeth Group (note (i) & Flisbeth 5 @ (MIEE()) 2,770 1,365
note (ii) note (ii)
i 5 (i) (D)
Sales to Ebeca Cosmetic (Holding) Limited ETKEEELAREEER AR 578 -
Purchase from Ebeca Cosmetic (Holding) BEKEFEEtARERERAR
Limited 635 -
Balances with non-wholly owned B2 ENBEARERE
subsidiaries (note (iii)):— (KX Gii))
Net amount due from Lisbeth Group (note (i))  FEdkLisbeth s EF 58 (FI=E()) 2,010 1,365
Net amount due to Ebeca Cosmetic (Holding) EREEEEAREEERARFRE
Limited 105 -
Note: et
(i)  Lisbeth Group represents Lisbeth Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries. (i) Lisbeth&[E4ELisbeth Enterprises Limited & E K&
AT
(i) After adjusting for differences in closing inventories, the net sales amount (i) MBRBRFERER FHEFELHA2,577,000F T
was approximately HK$2,577,000 (2001: HK$686,000). (ZZZ—%:686,000TT) °
(iii)  The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment terms. (i) BREBILEK CEREFTERLY
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31.Litigations 31. KA
(a) Lisbeth Enterprises Limited vs Edwin John Phillips and Barry (a) Lisbeth Enterprises Limited¥fEdwin John
Richard Wain Phillips&Barry Richard Wain

On 29th November 2001, Lisbeth Enterprises Limited (“Lisbeth”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, served two statutory

demands as follows:

(a) one on Mr. Edwin John Phillips (“Mr. Phillips”) in respect of an
unpaid debt and accrued interest under two Promissory Notes

amounting to HK$12,333,282.42; and

(b) one on Mr. Barry Richard Wain (“Mr. Wain") in respect of an
unpaid debt and accrued interest under two Promissory Notes

amounting to HK$12,322,104.91.

On 17th December 2001, the solicitors for Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain
applied to the High Court to set aside the aforementioned statutory

demands.

The above statutory demands were withdrawn on 25th January

2002.

On 7th January 2002, Lisbeth served two writs against Mr. Phillips
and Mr. Wain for sums due under the aforesaid Promissory Notes
(with accrued interest). On 11th March 2002, Mr. Phillips and Mr.

Wain filed Defences against the two writs.

The Company’s legal advisers have advised that Lisbeth’s claims
against Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain have a good chance of succeeding.
However, the ultimate recovery of the sums due remains uncertain.
Full provision against the four Promissory Notes (with accrued
interest) has therefore been made in the Consolidated Profit and

Loss Account.

R-ZZFZT—F+—A=t+hB KRFAZH#2E
MiEBAFLisbeth Enterprises Limited
(TLisbeth]) IRIEATRMEEE EREESE:

(a) HeP—HJ5[EEdwin John Phillipsst 4
(TPhillipsSe 4 1) E I - HL AR FE R R A A
ZE &% H12,333,282. 428 T 2 K HE
ARBEME R

(b) Z—#fJy@Barry Richard Wain%t4E
(TwWainfe 4 1) E i - R BIRFE R SR A AT
ET28A12,322,104.9BL 2R NE
H AR S e

R=ZFZF—F+=ZA++A Phillipsk4ER
Wain 5t 4 2 228 [a) = 5 A Rr R ss isH FiUATE

EREEE-

AR EREEEER TR E— A+
AAHE-

R-ZZZ-F— B Lisbethpt L AT
T2ZRFECERMBBEFE) @PhillipsEE R
Wain e £ HHMBEASKR-R-_ZT_F=
A+—H " Phillipsfe & & Wain £ £ 5t Lt FIR

SRR R

RAT 2 ERBEBRA Lisbeth[Phillips 5t 4
BWain e ER MR R 2 BEE KA - &AL EE
BB RRINBAR M2 8o Hit BERéRA 185
BRA L PR A R GERAEREFIR) (Fi 2
BE.

BHEBERERAR —TF

SRR FER
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31.Litigations (conTinueD) 31.5F A @

(b) Edwin John Phillips vs Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (b) Edwin John Phillips¥53 BB 2 KRB R 2D 7

On 3rd December 2001, Mr. Phillips issued and served a writ against
the Company claiming, amongst other things, damages of HK$31.2
million based on alleged oral agreements between the Company
and Mr. Phillips that the Company would buy from Mr. Phillips the
remainder of Mr. Phillips’ shares in Lisbeth. The Company’s legal
advisers’ opinion was that Mr. Phillips’ claim was without ground
and should be defended. Accordingly, the Company filed a Defence
on 24th December 2001.

On 24th December 2001, the Company applied to strike out Mr.
Phillips’ Statement of Claim on the basis that, amongst other things,
it disclosed no reasonable cause of action. The Company's

application was to be heard on 15th March, 2002.

On 14th March 2002, Mr. Phillips applied for court’s permission to
file and serve a Re-Amended Statement of Claim. The Judge refused
Mr. Phillips” application to file and serve the proposed Re-Amended
Statement of Claim and made a substantial costs order against Mr.
Phillips. The Judge set a time limit within which Mr. Phillips may

reformulate his claim.

On 15th April 2002, Mr. Phillips filed and served a Re-Amended
Statement of Claim. In the opinion of the Company’s legal advisers,
the Re-Amended Statement of Claim remains substantially defective

and is liable to be struck out.

On 4th June 2002, the Company filed and served a Re-Amended
Defence and Counterclaim. The Company’s Counterclaim against
Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain is based on Mr. Phillips’ and Mr. Wain's
misrepresentations and breaches of warranty concerning the 1999

Audited Financial Statements of Lisbeth.

SA SA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2001/2002

R=ZFZ—F+=A=A PhillipstERAER
ABEETRE—HERASK AROERESE
31,200,000/ TEAMEKR - ZREERE
BERADQBEPhillipsic 7T 2 OBz A

Al & MPhillips % & B APhillips £ A FT#F
Lisbeth 2 A TR - ARAR 2 ERERRA

Phillipsfe 4 2 R RIBIET B R AR A fEVE L1

R AARBERZZEE—F+A=+WN
B ke

REZZZE—F+ZA=Z+WB ARERERS
FHHIBRPhillipsE £z B RBRME  HE R BE
ZRMERERBEEFE AR ZHAFRZ
TE-_F=RF+HRHKH-
R=ZZZ=F=A+MA  Phillips st £ AT

REIERR RXEB BRI AR E X
FE4BPhillips B AR RXERBE BB AR
& 2 BRE WA Phillips 5t 4 8 Y & KEF
REB < EB R HPhillips E AR B HIET
HERBRZER-

RZZTZ_FMA+ERB PhillipsE ERR I
REBEBIRRRAE -KADAERERR
R ZBETRRRAEN T TH LEKE
HOEBE IR -

RZFZE-FRANA ARARZ K
BEIMERR AR RRAMPhillips £ R
Wain AR ERBR - BEAPhillipskER
Wainst & ptLisbeth— NN F L EZ I B HE
TR R BRI A 38 AR B -
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31.Litigations (conTinueD) 31.5F A @

(b) Edwin John Phillips vs Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (b) Edwin John Phillips¥35 5 BB IZR B R
(continued) DA ()
On 5th June 2002, Sa Sa applied to strike out Phillips’ Re-Amended R-_ZEZ-FEX AR FBRERBBG
Statement of Claim. Phillips/c £ 2 BER] R R E -
In the opinion of the Company’s legal advisers, the Company has a KRR ERERRA ARBEEABEERAR
reasonable prospect of successfully defending Mr. Phillips’ claim 1 AT AT B Phillips B E AR R Z B R A
against the Company, and a reasonable prospect of succeeding in KA & 218 i A8 (E AT [ Phillips 5 4 & Wain
the Counterclaim against Mr. Phillips and Mr. Wain. Accordingly, FEEERBR B WERKREALEBER
no provision for damages and / or any related costs have been made BR/SEMBAERBELEE-

in the accounts.

32.Ultimate holding company 32. RAAER AT
The directors regard, Sunrise Height Incorporated, a company & Z= 7 ASunrise Height Incorporated (R KB %
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding BHEFMKL 2 R A]) REKBERAT-

company.

SHBRRBRARAT —TET—/"FT-44H
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33.Group structure 33. 5@ 58
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March 2002: NTRR-ZZZ-_F=A=1T—HXEWBEAA
e

Principal activities

and place of operation

(if different from

place of incorporation/

establishment) Indirect

Place of FTEEBKR Particulars interest

incorporation/ B B of issued held

Name establishment (neazkfm,~ share capital Sk

H#HB LR L it 2 PR3t B R [E]) ERITRAE BEzER

* Alibaster Management Limited British Virgin Islands Trading and retailing Ordinary 100%
RERLHS of cosmetic and US$6,880,000
skin care products AR
in Taiwan 6,880,000 37T

REEBEBERTE
ek m R & &

Base Sun Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary HK$100 100%
IBEREGRAR B MERE Deferred HK$2
LA 10075 7T
TR 27T

Cyber Colors Limited British Virgin Islands Holding of trademarks Ordinary US$1 100%
RERLES HAERBSR TER1ET

Docile Company Limited British Virgin Islands Holding of trademarks Ordinary US$2 100%
KERXHS HEBER Tmk2ETT

Ebeca Cosmetic (Holding) Limited Hong Kong Trading of cosmetic Ordinary 55%
KEEEEREEBR AR 6 and skin care products HK$1,000,000
BRI mKkEED AR
1,000,000/8 7T

Gig Limited Samoa Holding of trademarks Ordinary US$1 100%
1% FE 35 HEBER TmR1ET
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33.Group structure (conTINUED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (conrmuery B B Bf

AY
()
R/

b=11]2

Principal activities

and place of operation

(if different from

place of incorporation/

establishment) Indirect
Place of FEEKR Particulars interest
incorporation/ =3k of issued held
Name establishment (mEEEEM,~ share capital B
z18 SR B Sz i 26 R B E) ERITRAE KR zER
*Hong Kong Sa Sa (M) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Trading and retailing Ordinary 100%
SRA TR of cosmetic and RM20,000,000
skin care products TR
BEERTE(im f5%20,000,0007T
REEm
Lea Limited Samoa Holding of trademarks Ordinary US$1 100%
1% FE 35 FAEEER LTER1%ET
Matford Trading Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary HK$100 100%
EREHARAF B MERE Deferred HK$6
L mik1008 T
RIERR 678 7T
Sa Sa Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Holding of trademarks Ordinary US$2 100%
HBRLES HAEER TEk2ET
Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited Hong Kong Trading and retailing Ordinary HK$100 100%
B mBR DR B of cosmetic and Deferred HK$2
skin care products L@k 100%8 T
BERTE(fkm RIERR 278 7T
RS
*Sa Sa Cosmetic Co. (S) Pte Ltd. Singapore Trading and retailing Ordinary 100%
Nk of cosmetic and $$19,500,000
skin care products L3/ 19,500,000
BEERTE kM KT
R &S
IS BIBRER AR AR T/ —TT_FFR
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and provision of
beauty services
BEERTE
ferzim R & B m &
REZARG

36,360,000/ 7T #

33.Group structure (conTiNueD) 33.5EEEw
Principal activities
and place of operation
(if different from
place of incorporation/
establishment) Indirect
Place of FEEBR Particulars interest
incorporation/ 2t B of issued held
Name establishment (fnEEsEfm,~ share capital Eif: 3
=g 18, 3L it B B i BERE) BETRA BE R
Sa Sa dot Com Limited Hong Kong E-commerce Ordinary 100%
B w®ERE HK$1,000,000
EAk
1,000,000 &7
Sa Sa Information Technology British Virgin Islands  Provision of information Ordinary US$1 100%
Limited RERZHS technology services T@k1ET
in Hong Kong
REBREEARRS
Sa Sa Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary HK$100 100%
BHRAERR AT B MERFE Deferred HK$2
ZmR100% T
RIERR 2% T
Sa Sa Property Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary HK$100 100%
BB ERR AT =B MERE ZmR100% T
*Shenzhen Sa Sa Ebeca The People’s Republic Trading and retailing Registered 55%
Enterprise Limited of China of cosmetic and HK$36,360,000#
FIBBEBEBEEBRAA FE skin care products EEaiis



33.Group structure (ConTINUED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) E\'E E IZHE\ (&)

Principal activities
and place of operation
(if different from

place of incorporation/

establishment) Indirect

Place of FEEHKR Particulars interest

incorporation/ ek of issued held

Name establishment (anERzE R, share capital B

H18 A, B S it 26 R B E) ERITRAE FAzER

Swiss Balance Limited British Virgin Islands Holding of club Ordinary US$1 100%
RERZHE debentures TmR1ETT

RAEGHEES

Suisse Programme Limited Gibraltar Holding of trademarks Ordinary Gibraltar 100%
BEmER BEAR £100
LB 100 E 10 AR PE 5

Vance Trading Limited Hong Kong Property holding Ordinary 100%
KHREHERAE Bt MERA HK$400,100
Deferred
HK$1,600,000
400,100/ 7T
1,600,000/ 7T

* Lisbeth Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Provision of beauty Ordinary 58.33%
B and health club HK$120,000
services kR
REEBREED LIRS 120,000/ 7T

* Phillip Wain International Singapore Provision of beauty Ordinary 58.33%
(Singapore) Pte Limited TN and health club $$100,000
services EER
REEBAREED LIRS 100,000%7 % 7T

SPARERARAT —FF—/ —FE-FFH



33.Group structure (conTINUED)

Principal activities

and place of operation

(if different from

place of incorporation/

establishment) Indirect
Place of FEEBR Particulars interest
incorporation/ 2t B of issued held
Name establishment (fnEEsxEm,~ share capital B
=g 18, 3L it B B i BERE) BETRA BE R
* Phillip Wain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Provision of beauty Ordinary 58.33%
P i and health club RM300,000
services Ak
RHUEAREED LR 5 #300,0007T
* Phillip Wain (Thailand) Limited Thailand Provision of beauty Ordinary 58.33%
el and health club Baht4,000,000
services Eak

REEE R TP LR

* Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong. The

aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,

Hong Kong amounted to approximately 8% of the Group’s total net assets.

# At 31st March 2002, the paid-up capital amounted to HK$27,360,000.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

34.Approval of Accounts

34.

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on 19th July 2002.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRBFRG@EE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Sa Sa
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Level 7, Bowen
Room, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong on

Thursday, 29th August 2002 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements
and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31st

March 2002.

2. To consider and declare a final dividend for the year ended 31st March

2002.

3. To re-elect the retiring directors and to authorise the board of directors

to fix their remuneration.

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their

remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the

Company:—

“THAT:—
conditional on the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited granting the approval for the listing of and permission to
deal in the shares of the Company, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 29th August 2002, to be issued pursuant
to the exercise of any options (the “Options”) granted under the share
option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme"), a copy of
which has been produced to this meeting marked “A” and signed by

the chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification:-

(i)  the existing share option scheme of the Company adopted on 22nd
May 1997 (the "Existing Scheme"”) be and is hereby terminated and
that all outstanding options granted pursuant to the Existing Scheme
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the Existing Scheme, subject to the provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited; and

ERESSEAREREBRAR ([ARA]) ETR =TT
“ENAZTAB(2HM) LF+—RRESESES
BFATEGEBEETRERAERTRIAFAG #
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(if)

the Share Option Scheme be and is hereby approved and adopted
and the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, at
their absolute discretion, to grant Options and to allot and issue

shares of the Company.”

6. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without

amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the

Company:-

"THAT:-

(A)

subject to paragraph 6(C) below, the exercise by the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with unissued shares in the capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants,
bonds and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

the Directors be and are hereby authorised during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds and debentures convertible into shares of the
Company) which might require the exercise of such powers during

or after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the approval
in paragraph 6(A) and (B), otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue
(as hereinafter defined) or pursuant to the exercise of any options
granted under the share option scheme adopted by the Company
or an issue of shares upon the exercise of subscription rights
attached to the warrants which might be issued by the Company or
an issue of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares or any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangement in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company, shall
not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue at the time of passing this resolution;

and

)
)
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(D) for the purposes of this resolution:—

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:—

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or

any applicable law of Cayman Islands to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by
the Directors to holders of shares on the register of members on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors
of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock

exchange).”
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7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without

amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the

Company:—

"THAT:-

(A)

subject to paragraph 7(C) below, the exercise by the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all powers of the Company to purchase issued shares in
the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or any other stock exchange on
which the shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for
this purpose, and that the exercise by the Directors of all powers of
the Company to purchase such securities are subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws, be and is hereby, generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph 7(A) shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and shall authorise the Directors
on behalf of the Company during the Relevant Period to procure
the Company to purchase its shares at a price determined by the

Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company
purchased or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
7(A) during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the time of passing this resolution; and

for the purposes of this resolution:-

“Relevant Period” means the period from the time of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:—

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;
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(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or

any applicable law of Cayman Islands to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

8. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of the

Company:—

“THAT conditional upon the passing of the ordinary resolutions numbered
6 and 7 in the notice convening this meeting, the aggregate nominal
amount of the shares in the capital of the Company which are purchased
by the Company pursuant to and in accordance with the said resolution
numbered 7 shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company that may be allotted or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be allotted by the directors of the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the resolution numbered 6 set out

in that notice of meeting.”

By Order of the Board
Tse Ping Shing

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 19th July 2002

Notes:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closed from 26th August 2002 to
29th August 2002, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share and transfer office, Abacus Share
Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road, Central,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 23rd August 2002.

8.
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Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the
Company shall be entitled to appoint another person (who must be an individual)
as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. On a poll votes may be given either
personally or by proxy. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member
may appoint any number of proxies to attend in his stead at any one general

meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy and (if required by the board of Directors) the
power of attorney or other authority, (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially
certified copy of such power or authority shall be delivered at the Company’s branch
share and transfer office, Abacus Share Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll
taken subsequently to the date of a meeting or adjourned meeting, not less than
forty-eight hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll, and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid provided always that
the chairman of the meeting may at his discretion direct that an instrument of
proxy shall be deemed to have been duly deposited upon receipt of telex or cable
or facsimile confirmation from the appointor that the instrument of proxy duly
signed is in the course of transmission to the Company. Delivery of any instrument
appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and voting in
person at the meeting or poll concerned and, in such event, the instrument

appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons
may vote at any meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as
if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be
present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so
present being the most, or as the case may be, the more senior shall alone be
entitled to vote in respect of the relevant joint holding and, for this purpose,
seniority shall be determined by reference to the order in which the names of the

joint holders stand on the register in respect of the relevant joint holding.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointor or of his attorney authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a
corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of an officer, attorney or

other person duly authorised to sign the same.
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